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Who we are, what we do
As Australia’s national tourism organisation,
Tourism Australia’s role is to increase
international and domestic leisure tourism and
international business events. It also supports
the Australian tourism industry in its efforts to
increase the number of visitors, their dispersal
within Australia and the value they bring to the
Australian economy.

Tourism Australia is an Australian Government statutory
authority, established by the Tourism Australia Act 2004.
The organisation is responsible for promoting Australia
as a compelling international tourist destination and
encouraging Australians to travel throughout Australia.
Along with its predecessor, the Australian Tourist
Commission, Tourism Australia has a strong reputation for
developing innovative tourism marketing campaigns and
has built one of the world’s most successful and desirable
destination brands.
Tourism Australia works with its international, government
and industry partners to promote Australia’s unique tourism
experiences around the world. By providing the tourism
industry with resources and tools to promote its successful
marketing campaign – There’s nothing like Australia – the
organisation encourages more people to visit Australia,
increasing the country’s travel market share, visitors’ spend
per trip and the number of long-haul visitors.

2011/12 fast facts – Australian tourism
International – Australian Bureau of Statistics and
International Visitor Survey 12 months to 30 June 2012

Domestic – National Visitor Survey results 12 months to
30 June 2012

• 5.98 million short-term international arrivals:
up 1.2 per cent

• $51 billion domestic overnight spend, up by 9.1 per cent

• Arrivals from Asian markets drove growth, with China
up 16.7 per cent, Indonesia up 6.2 per cent, India up
5.4 per cent and Singapore up 1.3 per cent
• Total international trip expenditure increased to
$26.6 billion, up 1 per cent. China remained Australia’s
most valuable market, with expenditure up 9 per cent to
$3.8 billion

• 5.8 per cent growth in overnight trips for the year
• Increases were recorded across all trip segments with
Holiday up 2.2 per cent, Visiting Friends and Relatives up
11.5 per cent and Business up 6.9 per cent
• Spending in all these segments also increased with
Holiday up by 4.2 per cent, Visiting Friends and Relatives
up by 17.6 per cent and Business up by 16.4 per cent.

• Visitors from Asia were the highest spenders, contributing
$12.7 billion expenditure value to Australia, which
represents 47 per cent of total international spend.

Tourism Australia adds value to domestic travel and
tourism by encouraging Australians to spend their annual
leave on a domestic holiday.

2 Who we are, what we do

Indigenous experiences, Cooktown, Queensland
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Global visitor spend
CHINA

$3.77b

UK

(+15% since June 2010)

$2.81b

HONG
KONG

(-6% since June 2010)

GERMANY

$0.88b
(-6% since June 2010)

CANADA

$0.64b

KOREA

$1.29b

(+3% since June 2010)

$0.79b

$1.44b

FRANCE

$50.82b

(+1% since June 2010)

$0.55b

(-2% since June 2010)

AUSTRALIA

JAPAN

(+5% since June 2010)

(-2% since June 2010)

MIDDLE
EAST

MALAYSIA

$1.02b

$0.58b

USA

(-5% since June 2010)

$2.28b

(+4% since June 2010)

INDIA

$0.71b

(+3% since June 2010)

(+5% since June 2010)

(-3% since June 2010)

SINGAPORE

$1.19b

INDONESIA

$0.65b

(+17% since June 2010)

(+8% since June 2010)

NZ

Tourism 2020 aims to increase annual overnight
tourism spend to up to $140 billion in 2020

$2.23b

(+6% since June 2010)

International leisure spending – $14.06 billion in 2012

2010

2012

UK
$2.10b
(–10%)

2010

2012

China
$1.44b
(+30%)

2010

2012

NZ
$1.41b
(+3%)

2010

2012

USA
$1.18b
(+1%)

2010

2012

Japan
$0.96b
(–2%)

2010

2012

Korea
$0.69b
(+5%)

2010

2012

Germany
$0.64b
(–6%)

2010

2012

Singapore
$0.46b
(+4%)

2010

2012

Malaysia
$0.42b
(+3%)

2010

2012

Canada
$0.41b
(–6%)

2010

2012

France
$0.36b
(–5%)

2010

2012

Hong Kong
$0.36b
(+9%)

2010

2012

Indonesia
$0.26b
(+25%)

2010

2012

India
$0.22b
(+19%)

2010

2012

Mid East
$0.15b
(–10%)

Source: Tourism Research Australia, International Visitors in Australia, June 2012; Tourism Research Australia, Travel by Australians, June 2012.
Data comparison is 2012 against 2010. The Tourism 2020 industry potential target to increase overnight visitor spend to up to $140 billion by
2020 was launched in 2010.

4 Global visitor spend
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Tourism 2020 landed

2011/12 highlights - Tourism Australia

There’s nothing like Australia
worldwide launch in Shanghai, China

Great Golf Courses of Australia

seeAustralia
2 million
Facebook fans

Australian Tourism Exchange
2012, Perth, Western Australia
Deam Team launch
G’Day USA

OCT
2011

March
2012

Dec
2011

July
2011

SEPT
2011
Nov
2011

JAN
2012

June
2012
May
2012

FEB
2012

Australia’s National Landscapes
Great Barrier Reef National
Landscape launched

Australian Tourism Directions Conference 2011

seeAustralia
3 million
Facebook fans

There’s nothing like
Australia for incredible
Business Events campaign
and website launched

T-QUAL Tick launch

Tourism Australia,
Austrade and Dept
of Resources, Energy
and Tourism strategic
investment partnership.
Australian Tourism
Investment Guide launched

6 2011/12 Highlights – Tourism Australia
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Chairman’s Report
The past 12 months saw Tourism Australia deliberately and
significantly accelerate the strategies it has pursued over recent
years, with quite profound and far-reaching consequences for the
tourism industry throughout Australia. While acknowledging the
need to care for our traditional tourist markets, we directed more
of our focus, more of our partnerships and more of our resources
to our near neighbours in Asia, and in particular to China, with
considerable success.
We implemented this strategic direction when our entire industry was severely
challenged by a freefall in visitor numbers from Europe, the USA and the UK
after the Global Financial Crisis. At about the same time, industrial growth
in Asia was fuelling employment and creating a new middle class with the
means and desire to travel.
Taking advantage of the opportunities and meeting the challenges of the
transition from far-flung Western markets to nearby Eastern markets is
central to the strategies of Tourism Australia and state and territory
tourism organisations.
Australian tourism is a critically important, $96 billion industry, directly and
indirectly employing 1 million Australians. The country already attracts
6 million annual international visitors and encourages Australians to take
75 million annual domestic overnight trips. It is therefore vital that we
successfully embrace new and growing markets in Asia.
China is now Australia’s largest tourism export market in terms of economic
value, providing up to $3.8 billion in annual expenditure. It is both our highest
yielding and fastest growing market. Record numbers of Chinese visitors are
coming to Australia, with more than 583,000 visitor arrivals in 2011/12, a
17 per cent increase on the previous year. Amazingly, China will soon overtake
the UK as our second largest inbound visitor market by volume.
The Asian markets are at the forefront of Tourism Australia’s focus. These are
led by China, but also include Japan, Korea and the emerging India
and Indonesia markets. Last year, these Asian markets delivered 2.4 million
of the 5.98 million international visitors to Australia.
Tourism Australia maintains a balanced marketing portfolio, including the UK,
the USA and Western Europe, as well as Asia. These Western markets are still
very important. However, last year, visitors from the UK and Germany fell
6 per cent and 5 per cent respectively.
While we are seeing some signs of recovery from the USA and Japan, it could
be some years before these traditional visitor markets recover from their
current economic problems. We must take advantage of the markets that are
now growing most strongly.

8 Chairman’s Report

Tourism Australia’s independent, detailed and ongoing consumer research
into traveller behaviour shows that international travellers – particularly
those from China – and arguably many Australians themselves, are looking for
experiences that Australia has in abundance: pristine, highly accessible natural
environments; great food and wine; clean water, skies and air; friendly and
open hospitality; and a wide choice of accommodation and attractions.
These desirable features will help drive the Tourism 2020 strategy to double
overnight tourism expenditure to up to $140 billion annually by 2020. Not an
easy task, but our most recent figures show around $77 billion in annualised
overnight expenditure, making us optimistic about achieving this goal.
The latest figures for tourism performance from the United Nations World
Tourism Organization (UNWTO) identify Australia as 42nd for total arrivals.
This reflects the tyranny of distance and our island status. Australia will never
be a mass international visitor destination.
However, Australia ranks eighth overall for total tourism receipts and first
internationally for average spend per visitor. These global measures show the
need to offer first-class services and products, and the very best marketing
to maintain this performance.
Australian tourism has its challenges. However, I believe it is better placed than
ever to meet these challenges and the opportunities presented by the rise of
China, the growth in Asia overall and, hopefully, a resurgence of our traditional
markets sometime in the future.
I would like to compliment Tourism Australia’s Managing Director Andrew
McEvoy and his executive team for delivering greater operational savings over
the past year and for making Tourism Australia a more efficient, customerfocused and high-performing agency.
I also thank my fellow board members for their valuable contributions to
Tourism Australia’s strategic direction.
Finally, our thanks go to the officers of the Department of Resources, Energy
and Tourism for their support and their advice.

Geoff Dixon
Chairman

2011-2012 ANNUAL REPORT 9

Managing Director’s Report
Australian tourism proved its resilience in 2011/12, with an
overall return to growth. This is despite popular belief that the
strong dollar, higher cost Australian tourism offerings, and
struggling European and American markets were making the
industry less competitive.
Led by China and a resurgent domestic tourism market, the industry’s
performance should be acknowledged as positive. The strong domestic bounce
has seen five straight quarters of growth. Combined with the continuing march
of China and other Asian markets, this suggests Tourism 2020’s goal to double
overnight spending to up to $140 billion by the end of the decade remains
on track.
The past year also saw a return to growth in traditional markets, such as
Japan and the USA, while Indonesia, India and the South American markets of
Argentina and Brazil also grew significantly. In Europe, the working holiday visa
program and youth travel generally remained strong, bolstered by more than
20 per cent growth from Ireland. The UK, Australia’s second largest market by
volume and value, was harder hit by economic circumstances, with the holiday
purpose sector of the market continuing to lag.

of Google maps and Facebook technology as a travel planning tool. We also have
a strong presence on Twitter, and continue to stay at the forefront of newer social
media, such as Pinterest. To support our growing Asian markets, we have increased
our presence on China’s Weibo, Tudou and QQ, and India’s Orkut.
The Australian tourism industry is taking advantage of our strong digital
capabilities, with around 800 operators and 935 events listed on Tourism
Australia’s Facebook page.
Tourism Australia put a great deal of effort into industry engagement in
2011/12. The second Australian Tourism Directions Conference was held in
October in the Great Hall of the Australian Parliament House in Canberra,
attracting almost 300 government and industry leaders, as well as domestic
and trade media. The event was followed by a national industry briefing series,
in conjunction with state and territory tourism organisations and tourism
industry councils, which attracted almost 1,000 tourism operators.
Tourism Australia formed a new partnership in 2011/12 with the Department of
Resources, Energy and Tourism, and Austrade, in a bid to attract more investment
in Australia’s tourism infrastructure.

Phase two of There’s nothing like Australia was launched in Shanghai, China on
4 June 2012. This was significant as it was the first time Tourism Australia has
launched a global campaign overseas, and it was launched in China – Australia’s
fastest growing and highest value visitor market.

Launched by the Minister for Resources, Energy and Tourism the Hon Martin
Ferguson AM MP in May 2012, the partnership showcased more than 80
proposed or investment-ready tourism opportunities. It also outlined an
investment pipeline in Australia of more than $42 billion and introduced the
Australian Tourism Investment Monitor, a new tool developed by Tourism
Research Australia as a way to measure the sector’s investment performance.

This latest phase has ramped up the Australian tourism message, demonstrating
a more sophisticated, contemporary and desirable Australia in an increasingly
competitive travel and tourism sector. The new campaign video showcases
the ‘world’s best in Australia’, a theme which is carried through accompanying
print, digital and social media applications. There is also a focus on ensuring the
industry can use the creative elements of the campaign more easily.

It is early days for the partnership. However, the powerful combination of
Tourism Australia’s state partnerships and understanding of the global
consumer, Austrade’s investment expertise and both organisations’ international
networks has created a strong beginning. Investment round tables in Canada,
China, Japan, New Zealand, Singapore and Thailand have already created
significant investment interest in Australia’s tourism infrastructure.

There’s nothing like Australia phase two began well, with more than 20 million
worldwide downloads of the video in the weeks following the launch – making it
the most downloaded advertisement ever to come out of Australia. It also recently
won the Mumbrella National Marketing Award for Australia’s Favourite Ad.

Finally, Tourism Australia continued to change and invest in its own capabilities.
Sadly, we will farewell long-term international managers Johnny Nee and
Maggie White, after 19 and 23 years respectively. However, we welcomed
several talented newcomers, including Eva Huang (China) and Jane Whitehead
(Americas). Both Johnny and Maggie have been very well-regarded and
successful marketers for Australian tourism and their collective efforts are
gratefully acknowledged by Tourism Australia and the industry as a whole.

More importantly, our commercial partnerships with Qantas, Flight Centre and
Virgin Australia, which are aligned with the campaign, have all produced better
than expected bookings domestically. Similarly, we have run a strong overseas
commercial engagement program, developing marketing partnerships with
20 airlines, and various state and territory tourism organisations.
Tourism Australia’s engagement with our state and territory colleagues is an
essential part of our push to ensure Australia speaks with ‘one voice’ when
marketing internationally.

I’d like to conclude by thanking the Board of Tourism Australia and in particular
Chairman Geoff Dixon for his terrific support and guidance. I’d also like to
acknowledge an extremely energetic and committed management team and staff,
who enjoy working directly with the dynamic industry that is Australian tourism.

Tourism Australia’s strong digital marketing effort continued in 2011/12. We
improved our online presence by launching a new, cleaner, easier to navigate
australia.com in February, and developed content for other popular sites and
search engines.
Tourism Australia now hosts the world’s most popular destination social media
sites, with over 3.5 million fans on Facebook, 570,000 fans on Google+ and 50,000
fans on Instagram. We developed an innovative Facebook app, merging the best

10 Managing Director’s Report

Andrew McEvoy
Managing Director
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Tourism Australia’s objectives,
deliverables and priorities
Objectives

Legislative deliverables

Priorities

Tourism Australia is working with the Australian tourism
industry and federal, state and territory governments
to maximise the industry’s economic contribution. The
tourism industry aims to increase annual overnight
tourism expenditure from $70 billion (the 2009
benchmark) to up to $140 billion in 2020. To help achieve
this target, Tourism Australia is focused on:

Under the Tourism Australia Act 2004, Tourism Australia
is required to:

As directed by the Minister for Tourism in the Minister’s
Statement of Expectations for Tourism Australia (2011),
Tourism Australia’s priorities are to:

•w
 ork towards improving quality within the Australian
tourism industry, including by promoting the National
Tourism Accreditation Framework (T-QUAL)

• perform objectives and functions as defined in the
Tourism Australia Act 2004

• increasing leisure and business event visitors

• influence Australians to travel throughout Australia,
including for events

• actively engage with key stakeholders to advance the
2020 Tourism Industry Potential (now Tourism 2020),
including working with Australian Government
departments and agencies to facilitate Australian
tourism investment opportunities and additional
sustainable air services

• improving visitor value, including spend per trip and
spend per night
• gaining market share
• supporting supply-side sectors, such as tourism
infrastructure and aviation.

• influence people to travel to Australia, including
for events
• influence people travelling to Australia to also travel
throughout Australia

• help foster a sustainable tourism industry in Australia
• help increase the economic benefits to Australia
from tourism.

• ensure that the National Long-Term Tourism
Strategy and the 2020 Tourism Industry Potential
(now combined under Tourism 2020) are core priorities
for Tourism Australia
• promote Australia to international and domestic
markets as a leisure tourism and events destination,
and to international markets as a business events and
education destination
•e
 ngage the support of industry partners in domestic and
international co-operative marketing campaigns, and
ensure maximum state and territory government and
private sector investment

12 Tourism Australia’s objectives, deliverables and priorities

Sydney Harbour, New South Wales

• l ead industry communications and disseminate research
and other information in cooperation with the Tourism
Research Advisory Board
• i mplement and maintain high standards of corporate
governance, including meeting all legislative
requirements, complying with the 2012 Commonwealth
Procurement Rules and ensuring Tourism Australia has
risk management strategies in place.
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Australia and global tourism
In 2011/12, global tourism continued to rebound from
turbulent economic conditions, as well as from political
changes in the Middle East and North Africa, and natural
disasters in Japan. As an international traded service,
inbound tourism has become one of the world’s major
trade categories, ranking fourth after fuels, chemicals and
food as an export category.
Global international tourism receipts reached a record
US$1,030 billion in 2011, up from US$927 billion in 2010.
International arrivals (overnight visitors) to Australia
grew by 1.2 per cent in 2011/12 to 5.98 million, up from
5.9 million in 2010/11. Europe and Asia were the fastest
growing regions for tourist arrivals over the year.
According to UNWTO, Australia ranked eighth in the world
for international tourism receipts in 2010/11, generating
US$31.4 billion (3 per cent of worldwide tourism receipts).
This reflects the long-haul travel profile of visitors to

Australia and their tendency to stay longer and engage
more with the country when they visit. Australia was
ranked 42nd for international visitor arrivals.
The Asian region has one of the world’s fastest growing
tourism markets and fastest growing aviation markets,
driven by strong economic growth, an increasingly affluent
middle class and the largest international aviation market
in the world. This growth was particularly evident in the
number of leisure visitors from China.

Tourism 2020
“Tourism 2020 is about lifting productivity, innovation and quality by tapping
into digital technology, increasing investment through regulatory reform, further
expanding our transport capacity and focusing on labour, skills and Indigenous
participation.” – the Hon Martin Ferguson AM MP, Minister for Resources, Energy
and Tourism

This is the Asian Century and opportunities for Australian
tourism in Asia continued to grow in 2011/12. Within the Asia
Pacific, Australia received 2.7 per cent of international tourist
arrivals in 2011 and 10.9 per cent of international tourism
receipts – second only to China. Australia’s close Asia-Pacific
links will continue to play a critical role in achieving the
Tourism 2020 goals.

International Tourism Receipts

US$ billions
2010

2011

103.5

116.3

Spain

52.5

59.9

France

46.6

53.8

4

China

45.8

48.5

5

Italy

38.8

43.0

6

Germany

34.7

38.8

7

UK

32.4

35.9

8

Australia

29.8

31.4

Rank
1

USA

2
3

9

Macao (China)

27.8

10

Hong Kong (China)

22.2

Tourism 2020 was launched by Minister Ferguson on 6 December 2011

27.2

The Australian Government’s Tourism 2020 strategy aims
to build the resilience and competitiveness of Australia’s
tourism industry. Announced by the Hon Martin Ferguson
AM MP, Minister for Resources, Energy and Tourism, on
6 December 2011, Tourism 2020 consolidates the National
Long-Term Tourism Strategy and the 2020 Tourism Industry
Potential, linking tourism supply and demand with the
industry’s growth aspirations.

Source: United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO),
Tourism Highlights 2012.
Data as collected by UNWTO, June 2012.

Tourism Australia’s long-term goal is to work with the
tourism industry and governments across Australia to
achieve Tourism 2020’s target and to make the most of
strong growth in demand from Asia.
Dining at Fellini’s, Gold Coast, Queensland

14 Australia and global tourism

Tourism 2020 aims to:
• i ncrease annual overnight tourism spend from $70
billion in 2009 to up to $140 billion in 2020
• hold or grow market share in key markets
• increase tourism jobs
• increase accommodation capacity
• increase international and domestic
aviation capacity
• improve industry quality and productivity.

All state and territory tourism organisations have adopted
the Tourism 2020 strategy, using it as a base for their
own strategic direction. This has helped emphasise the
importance of supply-side improvements.
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Tourism 2020 - achievements to date
Tourism Australia has implemented a new global strategic direction to increase
collaboration and partnerships with industry and government to achieve
Tourism 2020 goals.
During 2011/12, a record 5.98 million international visitors
came to Australia. There was also an increase in the number
of nights they stayed, how much they spent and their
dispersal to destinations beyond Australia’s main gateways.
The Asia Pacific continued to grow strongly in 2011/12,
led by China, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, New Zealand and
Singapore. Longer haul UK and European markets had small
declines, indicative of their ongoing economic difficulties,
while Japan and the USA showed signs of recovery.
Australia’s inbound numbers grew to record highs in
2011/12. Australia retained a top-five ranking in the 2011
FutureBrand global study of country brands. In short,
people want to travel here. The goal is to capture this
desire and convert it into actual visits.

Domestic tourism remained the biggest segment of the
Australian tourism industry, accounting for about twothirds of all overnight expenditure. While the strength
of the Australian dollar encouraged Australians to travel
overseas in large numbers, the pace of this travel has
abated. There were also encouraging signs of improvement
in the domestic market. Overnight trips increased by
almost 6 per cent in the 12 months to 30 June 2012 and
expenditure grew by 9 per cent to $51 billion.
Tourism 2020 identifies six strategic areas government
and industry activity should focus on to deliver tangible
benefits for Australian tourism.

Strategic area of focus

Tourism Australia’s achievements in 2011/12

Grow visitor demand from Asia,
particularly China and India

Continued promoting Australia as a tourism destination across Asia, including the
global launch of the next phase of There’s nothing like Australia in Shanghai, China
Continued implementing the China 2020 Strategic Plan
Developed and launched the India 2020 Strategic Plan

Build competitive digital
capacity to attract more visitors
and enable online transactions

15 per cent increase in resources allocated to digital marketing in 2011/12

Encourage investment
development through
regulatory reform

Developed a strategic partnership with Austrade and the Department of Resources,
Energy and Tourism to attract investment in Australian tourism infrastructure

Improve tourism transport
capacity and infrastructure to
allow more visitors to travel to
and through Australia

Contributed to the growth in tourism transport through involvement in Tourism
2020‘s Tourism Access Working Group

Address labour and skills
shortages, including greater
Indigenous participation

Participated in the Australian Government’s Tourism Visa Advisory Group, working
closely with the Department of Resources, Energy and Tourism and the Department
of Immigration and Citizenship

Participated in the Digital Distribution Working Group and National Online Strategy
for Tourism, helping to build digital capabilities
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Launched in June 2011, the China 2020 Strategic Plan
aims to ensure Australian tourism remains competitive in
the fast-growing market for outbound travel from China.
The plan was developed in collaboration with the tourism
industry and government agencies, and forms a key part of
the Tourism 2020 Strategy’s goal to ‘grow visitor demand
from Asia’. Total expenditure from China is projected to
grow from $3.7 billion in 2011 to between $7.4 billion and
$9 billion by 2020.
The plan identifies five areas that are pivotal to winning
market share in China:
• knowing the customer
• a dedicated geographic strategy
• delivering quality Australian tourism experiences
• a healthy aviation development environment
• strong partnerships between government and industry
Since the plan was launched, inbound tourism from
China has gone from strength to strength. China is now
Australia’s fastest growing and most valuable inbound
market. Chinese tourists were worth almost $3.8 billion to
the Australian tourism industry in the twelve months to
30 June 2012, up by 9 per cent on the previous year. More
than 583,000 Chinese tourists visited Australia in 2011/12,
compared with 499,700 in 2010/11.
China’s growing importance as an inbound market
strongly influenced Tourism Australia’s decision to unveil
the latest phase of its There’s nothing like Australia
campaign in Shanghai on 4 June 2012. Tourism Australia
almost doubled its marketing resources for China
in 2011/12.

Highlights from the China 2020 Strategic Plan in
2011/12 included:
• conducting a successful There’s nothing like Australia
campaign, with 90 per cent of the target audience who
saw the campaign in China confirming they had started
researching a trip to Australia
• initiating online projects for the Chinese
market, including:
»» translating product and experience information from
the Australian Tourism Data Warehouse into Chinese
languages, providing Australian tourism operators
with direct access to Chinese consumers
»» plans to build and host a dedicated Tourism Australia
website in China, providing Chinese consumers with
tourism information in their own language and
improved connectivity and usability
• completing research into the travel needs and behaviours
of target customers, and sharing the insights with the
tourism industry and government agencies
• finalising the China Geographic Expansion Plan, a guide
for marketing activities in China
• launching additional direct flights to new Australian
destinations and key cooperative marketing campaigns
with Qantas, China Southern Airlines, Cathay Pacific/
Dragon Air and Singapore Airlines/Silk Air
• achieving a record aviation seat capacity in 2011 – up
52 per cent compared to 2010
• developing stronger partnership between government
agencies and tourism industry representatives, including
aligning individual China Plans being developed by
state and territory tourism organisations and creating a
bilateral tourism relationship with China.

Launched the Australian Tourism Investment Guide, Tourism Investment Monitor and
Austrade Partnership

Supported existing and new route development and capacity through partnerships
with airlines, airports, and state and territory tourism organisations

Promoted and assisted the development of Indigenous tourism products through the
Indigenous Tourism Champions Program and industry marketing initiatives
Increase industry productivity,
resilience and quality

China 2020 Strategic Plan

“The fact that more than 583,000 Chinese travellers visited our country in 2011/12 is
fantastic, but certainly no reason to feel the job is done. If we’re not fully prepared,
the Asian Century will pass us by. The great news is that we’re starting to see the
industry really embrace this opportunity by adapting their business to meet the
needs of Chinese visitors.” – Andrew McEvoy, Managing Director, Tourism Australia

Participated in the Resilience Working Group and Tourism Quality Council of Australia
Trade and consumer promotion of the T-QUAL accreditation program
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“The number of Indians taking international long-haul
holidays remains relatively small. However, global travel is
becoming a higher priority for many Indians and we predict
numbers will grow quickly. It will be critical to deepen their
level of understanding about Australia – something which
we believe we can achieve through our There’s nothing like
Australia campaign.” – Frances Anne Keeler, Executive General

India 2020 Strategic Plan
India is currently Australia’s 10th most valuable inbound
tourism market, with more than 153,000 visitors spending
over $700 million in 2011/12. By 2020, India’s annual visitor
rate could increase to 300,000, delivering up to $2.3 billion
to the Australian tourism market. With India forming an
important part of Asia’s growth during the Asian Century,
Tourism Australia recognised the need for a dedicated
strategy to encourage further tourism to Australia.
In June 2012, Tourism Australia unveiled its India 2020
Strategic Plan, to help Australia secure a greater share of
the 50 million Indians expected to travel overseas by 2020.
The plan identifies four areas that are central to achieving
market growth and capturing market share in India:
Knowing the customer
The plan identifies the target leisure market as affluent,
mid-life travellers who are self-employed entrepreneurs,
highly qualified professionals or senior executives at
multinational companies. They travel in couples or
increasingly as independent travellers. Ongoing consumer
research will determine the most effective communication
strategy to reach target customers.
A clear geographic strategy to focus resources
The plan will concentrate on areas with the greatest
concentration of affluent households, with Delhi and
Mumbai as initial areas of focus.
Building a sustainable, competitive aviation market
between Australia and India
There is currently a shortage of direct flights between India
and Australia so it is important to improve air access and
capacity. Tourism Australia anticipates that an additional
345,000 seats will be needed to meet demand.
Quality experiences that competitively differentiate
Australia, and an aligned distribution strategy
Tourism Australia’s consumer research indicated that
Indians are motivated to travel to Australia to experience
‘nature’ and ‘journeys’. The plan will prioritise developing
new products that meet the needs of target customers,
as well as in-market promotions that showcase new
destinations and reasons to visit.

Manager, International, Tourism Australia

Minister for Tourism the Hon Martin Ferguson AM MP at the launch
of the Tourism Australia India 2020 Strategic Plan

Business events customer research in China
Business Events Australia and the Association of Australian
Convention Bureaux commissioned research into Australia’s
business events opportunities in China, to provide insights
into how to capitalise on these growing opportunities.
The research found that Tourism Australia’s Chinese
business events customers are mostly based in Shanghai,
Beijing and Guangzhou. They work as business event
planners and corporate business events decision makers in
industries such as automotive, electronics, direct selling,
insurance, IT and pharmaceuticals.
A number of key points emerged from the research,
including that:
•A
 ustralia is a highly aspirational business events
destination, with one in five survey respondents choosing
Australia as their preferred destination
•b
 usiness events should include innovative team building
activities in Australia’s natural landscapes, as they
provide a real ‘point of difference’ for Chinese business
events customers
• v alue for money and safety are important factors when
choosing the destination for an incentive trip; Australia
needs to promote its vast range of options for incentive
itineraries, as well as its safety and security
• c ustomised event experiences, such as involvement by
Australian Government officials or providing services in
Mandarin, encourage repeat visits and recommendations
•b
 uilding relationships with travel and event agencies as
well as corporate clients is vital to winning business
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12 Apostles, Great Ocean Road, Victoria
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Meeting Tourism 2020 targets
Tourism Australia is focused on four key strategies to help
deliver Tourism 2020 outcomes:
Customer focus
• Know the target customer – who they are, where they
live and what they like to do – and disseminate these
insights within the industry
• Deliver effective marketing communications – the right
message through the right channel, with a digital focus
• Build partnerships that engage customers across
distribution, media, industries and events
Development focus
• Use customer insights to inform marketing
investment and quality, and strengthen demand for
tourism experiences

Government focus
• Collaborate with government partners to present a
strong ‘Australia’ brand to target customers
• Partner with federal and state governments to
influence and promote tourism investment opportunities
in Australia
People and organisation
• Recruit, develop, promote and reward the right people to
support Tourism Australia’s strategy and processes
• Build an organisation with a constructive culture, an
efficient structure and effective communication and
decision-making channels
• Respect and enforce high standards of accountability
and governance

• Build aviation partnerships that help grow sustainable
and competitive air capacity

20 Meeting Tourism 2020 targets

Ubirr Sunset, Kakadu, Northern Territory
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Customer focus
Differentiating Australia as a tourism destination
Tourism 2020’s aspirations are based on Australia holding
or growing its tourism market share. Tourism Australia
set itself an ambitious target in 2011/12 to improve the
economic value of Australian tourism and achieve Tourism
2020’s objectives by improving its marketing and nonmarketing activities.

To help Australian tourism achieve
Tourism 2020’s goals, an in-depth
understanding of the target customer
is vital and forms the foundation of all
Tourism Australia’s marketing activity.

It is imperative Tourism Australia remains competitive and
promotes Australia’s point of difference as a destination.
Today’s traveller is spoilt for choice, and not just in the travel
category. Australian tourism competes with a growing
number of tourism destinations, as well as other major
consumer purchases.

Knowing the customer

So what does it take to entice prospective customers to
choose Australia as their next travel destination?
Intimate knowledge of the target traveller is fundamental.
Tourism Australia researches who its customers are, where
they live and what they like to do across its global markets to
drive its marketing and development activities.
Since the initial release of There’s nothing like Australia in
2010, Tourism Australia has continued to undertake research
to better understand its target customers, including the
media they use and where they go to research, plan and
book a holiday.
Tourism Australia also conducted a review of Australia’s
key competitor destinations. Insights from the review
helped to further define and strengthen Tourism Australia’s
competitive focus and how it communicates with
customers. Sharing these insights with the tourism industry
and Australian state and territory tourism organisations also
helped to align state-specific campaign activities, building
a consistent ‘one voice’ message about what Australia has
to offer.
In its 2012/13 Budget, the Australian Government provided
a dedicated Asia Marketing Fund worth $48.5 million
over four years. While Tourism Australia will continue to
approach its international marketing activities as a balanced
portfolio – where traditional markets such as the UK and the
USA remain important – the new dedicated fund provides
an unprecedented opportunity to drive existing campaign
activity and new marketing efforts across Asian inbound
visitor markets. Under the funding arrangement, Tourism
Australia will also work closely with Tourism Research
Australia (TRA), to better understand the tourism behaviour
and travel preferences of Asian travellers.
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In 2011/12, ‘the customer’ remained at the heart of Tourism
Australia’s leisure consumer and business events marketing
and research activity.
These activities focused on consumers who were
predisposed to travelling to Australia, and who were
likely to spend more and do more while they travel.
From a business events perspective, Tourism Australia
targeted international corporate conference and incentive
agents, corporate decision makers, and Australian and
international associations. More than 80 per cent of
Tourism Australia’s marketing budget was allocated to this
‘best prospect’ customer, to increase its ability to achieve
Tourism 2020’s targets.
Tourism Australia’s global marketing resources were
allocated to markets that represented the greatest potential
for expenditure growth before 2020.

Global market resourcing categories 2011/12
Category 1 A. Worth more than $5 billion by 2020:
Australia, China, the UK and the USA

Understanding what motivates the customer

There’s nothing like Australia concept testing

In early 2012, Tourism Australia commenced its Consumer
Demand Project. The project aims to increase the
organisation’s understanding of what motivates target
customers, and to help fine-tune marketing messages to
stimulate travel to and within Australia.

Tourism Australia conducted consumer research to test the
creative concepts underpinning phase two of the There’s
nothing like Australia campaign. Target customers from
Australia, China, India, Indonesia, Japan, Malaysia, Korea,
the UK and the USA took part in the study. Participants
rated film concepts, print directions and the video
soundtrack to help Tourism Australia identify the most
motivating Australian travel experiences, the relative
strengths of print imagery and film scenes, and the
emotional responses elicited by the soundtrack.

Tourism Australia launched the Consumer Demand Project
in Australia, China, Germany, India, Indonesia, Japan,
Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore, Korea, the UK and the
USA. The organisation will monitor and report on the project
from 2012/13 onwards.
To date, the findings of the project have helped
Tourism Australia to:
• identify the best motivators in each market that increase
demand for Australian holidays
• assess and track desired Australian brand attributes
and associations
• discover the trigger points required to convert country
awareness into actual visits.

Shaping Tourism Australia’s China growth strategy
 ourism Australia conducted consumer research across
T
13 of China’s largest and fastest growing cities. This
research is the most comprehensive analysis to date of the
preferences of consumers living in China’s primary and
secondary cities.

Tourism Australia used findings from the concept testing
to inform the production and post-production campaign
development by its global creative agency, DDB. The
research provided insights to help Tourism Australia’s
global marketing team adjust the campaign to meet the
needs of target customers from different markets. Tourism
Australia also shared its insights from the research with
the tourism industry and government agencies under its
‘one voice’ initiative, to help align international marketing
of Australia and increase its impact in overseas markets.
In addition, campaign evaluation research conducted
in China after the launch of the campaign found that
There’s nothing like Australia is Tourism Australia’s most
successful Chinese campaign to date – testament to its
strong research foundations.

Tourism Australia is using the findings to help prioritise
marketing activities in China, and educate the Australian
tourism industry about Chinese travellers to help it
capitalise on the strong anticipated growth of Chinese
long-haul travellers.

B. Worth more than $3 billion by 2020:
Japan, New Zealand and Korea
Category 2	Worth between $1.5 billion and $3 billion
by 2020: Canada, France, Germany, Hong
Kong, India, Indonesia, Malaysia, the
Middle East and Singapore
Category 3 Rest of the world:
	A. Fast emerging countries: Brazil and
Vietnam

“Tourism Australia’s ‘Know the Customer
in China’ research will help us develop
products to connect with this valuable
market.” – Felicia Mariani, Managing
Director, Australian Tourism Export Council

B. High priority countries: Italy
C. Other markets
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There’s nothing like Australia
phase two
There’s nothing like Australia launches in the USA

Since its initial launch in May 2010, the There’s nothing like
Australia campaign has attracted 180 partners, appeared
in 25 countries and been translated into 17 languages. At
the heart of the campaign is an online, interactive map,
featuring around 60,000 images, stories and personal
holiday recommendations from Australians.

One hundred industry and media representatives gathered in Los Angeles to
view the new There’s nothing like Australia campaign video. In addition to
cinema and digital advertising, the There’s nothing like Australia app featured
at New York film festival Tropfest and was showcased in ‘mini-shows’, which
aired during CBS television’s Sunday Early Show. There was also a heavy focus
on social media, with Tourism Australia sponsoring the TBEX North America
travel bloggers and writers conference in June 2012.

Phase two of There’s nothing like Australia was launched
on 4 June 2012 in Australia, China, the UK and the USA. It
will be active in 18 of Tourism Australia’s key markets by
the end of 2012. Phase two features a new video and an
interactive application for tablet devices, focusing on the
highest quality experiences and tourism products Australia
has to offer. Over the next three years, Tourism Australia
will invest $180 million in the campaign and expects to
attract $70 million in partner contributions, boosting the
total campaign value to $250 million.
Within the first week of the domestic rollout, more than
9.8 million Australians saw the new campaign video on
television. The video was also viewed online more than
20 million times worldwide within the first few weeks of
its launch, making it Tourism Australia’s most successful
advertisement ever.
The campaign video includes scenes filmed in Sydney
Harbour, Uluru, Melbourne’s Southbank, the Great Ocean
Road, the Great Barrier Reef’s Lizard and Hayman Islands,
Freycinet in Tasmania, the Bungle Bungles in the Kimberley,
South Australia’s Kangaroo Island, and other parts
of Australia.
The video is proving a particularly big hit in China,
Australia’s fastest growing and most valuable overseas
market, with millions of views on China’s popular digital
channels, including Baidu, Banma, Tudou and Youku.
Tourism Australia also premiered the new campaign video
on its popular Facebook page, giving its three millionplus fans an opportunity to view it first and share it with
their own networks. Advocacy and recommendations
from family and friends play an important role in people
choosing a holiday destination, and form the basis of
There’s nothing like Australia. Tourism Australia uses social
media platforms to actively encourage people to share
their passion for Australia. This digital advocacy has been
critical to the campaign’s success.
There’s nothing like Australia also features a new
interactive tablet application, which uses cutting-edge
technology to tell Australia’s story. State and territory
tourism organisations played a significant role in helping
develop the campaign content, ensuring it reflected the
breadth and diversity of Australia’s tourism experiences.
The application has been downloaded more than 30,000
times, allowing consumers to explore in greater detail the
Australian locations featured in the video, as well as other
destinations not featured.
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Chinese consumers experience why There’s nothing like Australia

The Australian tourism industry’s response to the
campaign has been equally impressive, with around
100 Australian tourism operators seeking the opportunity
to be involved in the campaign so far. As well as
partnership opportunities, Tourism Australia provided
operators with a range of free marketing tools and
resources to align their existing marketing activities with
the campaign – from campaign logos and digital postcards,
to a content widget, newsletters and access to a gallery of
images and video footage.
The campaign provides an ideal platform for the industry
to speak with a unified voice when promoting Australia
overseas and at home. Its flexibility means that it can
evolve to fit the needs of a variety of industry operators
– from travel agents and small tour operators to large
wholesalers and international airlines.

“The campaign is supported by a
strong strategy. While the television
commercials are stunning and contain
iconic Australian imagery, they also
promote our cosmopolitan cities, which
is very important for our growing Asian
markets.” – John Lee, Chief Executive,
Tourism and Transport Forum

Following the launch of the There’s nothing like Australia campaign in Shanghai,
an interactive consumer promotion was staged on 5 and 6 June 2012 in
the city’s fashionable Xintiandi area. Public relations activity supporting the
campaign included airing a destination program on more than 30 television
stations across China, a travel magazine cover story, and a ‘Best of Australia’
supplement in 300,000 copies of a popular weekly lifestyle publication available
in 11 cities. Social media was also included in the campaign.

Aussies live the dream – There’s nothing like Australia launches at home
In September 2011, Tourism Australia launched its There’s nothing like
Australia Dream Team promotion, inviting Australians to share their Australian
holiday experiences online. Australians had the chance to share their favourite
holiday place or experience at nothinglikeaustralia.com and enter to win one
of 16 luxury Australian holidays with their Holiday Dream Team.
The promotion was very successful, attracting more than 41,000 entries and
300,000 unique visitors to the campaign website. Australians could also tune
in to see a Dream Team of Australian celebrities explore the country in
The Aussie Holiday Dream Team television special that was broadcast on
Channel 10 in November 2011.
Tourism Australia partnered with the tourism industry across the country
to promote the campaign. These collaborations extended consumer reach
by more than five million using partner websites, by two million through
electronic mail databases, and by 140,000 through social media channels
over the campaign period.
To help tourism businesses take advantage of campaign activity, Tourism
Australia created a range of free tools. These included banners, buttons, key
messages, guidelines for uploading images, press release templates and ideas
on how to get consumers to enter their holiday pictures of Australian tourism
partner products, experiences and regions.

“Domestic tourism is an important part of Flight Centre’s business. Seven domestic
destinations featured in our top ten ticket sales and we have seen ongoing demand
for domestic holidays across all our brands. A key element of our marketing strategy
is to partner with tourism bodies to help maintain the health of the Australian
tourism industry.” – Colin Bowman, Executive General Manager Marketing, Flight Centre
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There’s nothing
like Australia for
Business Events
Business events is one of the highest
yielding sectors in Australia’s visitor
economy, with the potential to
contribute up to $16 billion annually
by 2020.
Corporate meetings and business incentives represent
a vitally important and growing sector for Australian
tourism, contributing $9.6 billion to the economy in 2009,
$10.3 billion in 2010 and a record $12.5 billion in 2011.
Tourism Australia’s Business Events Australia (BEA) division
launched its There’s nothing like Australia for Business
Events global marketing campaign in February 2012.
Integrated with the There’s nothing like Australia consumer
brand, the business events campaign targets corporate
meeting and event planners. It is part of Tourism Australia’s
broader strategy to grow Australia’s high-yielding business
events sector to up to $16 billion by 2020.
BEA accompanied the campaign’s launch with the release
of the new website businessevents.australia.com, designed
specifically for international event planners. The website is
part of an ongoing digital and social media strategy, which
includes translating the site for North Asian markets and
launching a presence on Twitter (@MeetInAustralia).
The campaign and website were developed based on
research commissioned by BEA, which provided insight
into the conference and incentive market in China, and the
perceptions of Australia as a business event destination in
China, New Zealand, Singapore and the UK.

“The business events sector is a key economic generator
for the Australian economy, attracting high-yield visitors
for conventions, meetings, exhibitions and incentive
travel groups from around the world. The sector
has enjoyed good success over the past 12 months,
generating $10 billion in direct expenditure as well
as many flow-on benefits and legacies to Australian
businesses and the tourism industry.” – Damien Kitto,
President, Association of Australian Convention Bureaux.
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Sailing Sydney Harbour, New South Wales
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Providing target customers with
inspiration, tools and information
In 2011/12, Tourism Australia continued to build its
knowledge about how consumers’ use of technology has
evolved in the travel industry. The ultimate goal is to convert
online consumers to visitors, and visitors to advocates.
Tourism Australia identified search and social media
networks as an important way of connecting with
customers throughout the phases of their holiday
lifecycles. It then used research insights to develop and
distribute inspirational content through the internet,
mobile phones and tablet devices.

“With 1,400 photos of Australian
adventures shared every week, Tourism
Australia’s Facebook page provides an
incredibly powerful platform for more
than three million fans of Australia to
share their holiday experiences of our
great country with their social networks.”

Tourism Australia’s Facebook page the most popular
destination page on the planet

– Nick Baker, Executive General Manager,
Consumer Marketing, Tourism Australia

Tourism Australia’s Facebook page surpassed three million
worldwide fans in 2011/12, making it Australia’s largest
Facebook page and the world’s most popular tourism
destination page.
The page has been growing rapidly since its launch in
May 2008, gaining 855,000 new fans in 2011/12 alone.
This phenomenal growth demonstrates both Australia’s
enduring international appeal and Tourism Australia’s
successful social media strategy.
Research commissioned by Tourism Australia found that
social media is rapidly affecting the way Australians travel
domestically, with a significant number of the 10 million
Australians on Facebook making travel decisions based on
their friends’ social media activity.
Consumers not only followed the holiday adventures of
their friends on social media, but 20 per cent of those
surveyed admitted they had been prompted to book a
domestic holiday after viewing friends’ updates, often
inspired by photos and check-ins. More than any other
age group, Generation Y was most likely to book a holiday
based on the social media activity of friends, including
photos and status updates.
Social media and advocacy has become deeply integrated
into Tourism Australia’s marketing activities. The latest
phase of the There’s nothing like Australia campaign has a
strong digital focus and was even launched to Australians
using Tourism Australia’s Facebook page.

Australia.com revamp
Tourism Australia relaunched its popular global website,
australia.com, in early 2012. The site now has a cleaner
design, simpler navigation and additional functionality to
help international and domestic travellers better research,
plan and make the most of an Australian holiday. It
receives up to 16 million unique visitors each year and is
live in 17 languages.
Fifty per cent of global consumers now use digital channels
to research, plan and book holidays, making a site refresh
highly important. In the four years since its launch in 2008,
australia.com has more than tripled in size and in foreign
language versions. It plays a vital role in telling Australian
tourism’s story to the world. It is also a cornerstone of
Tourism Australia’s broader strategy to be competitive in
the digital space.

Asian superstars advocate Australia
Tourism Australia enlisted the support of two of
Asia’s most popular celebrities to attract more travellers
from China.
Show Lo and Rainie Yang – two Taiwanese pop singers
and TV stars with a combined online following of
more than 25 million fans – starred in an online drama
series that was filmed in Victoria, Tasmania and New
South Wales. The series was viewed online more than
118 million times across Greater China.
The initiative was supported by Tourism Victoria,
Tourism Tasmania and Destination NSW, enabling the
states to showcase their attractions and experiences.
The visit was a great example of the power of
advocacy through social media and using digital
platforms for marketing tourism activities. It allowed
Tourism Australia to reach an international audience
online, which is where visitors actively plan and
book holidays.
Show Lo and Rainie Yang are part of Tourism
Australia’s Friends of Australia global advocacy
program, which identifies and maintains a network
of credible advocates who have the ability to motivate
and inspire others to travel to Australia. Friends
work closely with Tourism Australia to generate
word-of-mouth buzz about Australia and promote
the country as a visitor destination. The Friends of
Australia program runs in tandem with the Advocacy
in the Digital Space Program and the Visiting Opinion
Leaders Program.

New Zealanders learn about My Kind of
Place – Australia
The Tourism Australia sponsored television series,
My Kind of Place – Australia, took New Zealand viewers
on a journey around regional Australia, bringing
them new and exciting information about Australian
holidays. The show drew more than four million viewers
during its ten weeks on air in 2011. Episode one of the
show ranked second in television ratings, with episode
two taking out the top spot.
Tourism Australia’s New Zealand Facebook page
also increased its fan base by 66 per cent during
the series. The show was a great success with the
1.19 million New Zealanders who travel to Australia
each year – 92 per cent of whom return looking for
new experiences.
Show Lo and Rainie Yang at
Graffiti Lane, Melbourne

28 Customer Focus

2011-2012 ANNUAL REPORT 29

Engaging inspirational partners
Tourism Australia continued to build partnerships with
traditional and non-traditional distributors in 2011/12,
ensuring customers could easily access quality Australian
tourism products and experiences. The organisation used
research insights about target customers’ needs to develop
marketing partnerships and distribute partner products,
including initiatives that presented the best of Australia
from across different regions and tourism sectors.

Qantas
Qantas has been a committed partner to Tourism Australia
for more than 40 years and continues to offer great support
to the Australian tourism industry. At the heart of the
partnership is Tourism Australia and Qantas’ memorandum
of understanding (MoU). The existing MoU is worth
$44 million in international marketing initiatives over three
years, including cooperative marketing campaigns, major
trade events, business events and public relations activities.

“No other airline in the world puts
Australia at the heart of everything
it does, which is why the partnership
with Qantas is critical to future tourism
growth.” – Andrew McEvoy, Managing
Director, Tourism Australia

Qantas continues to support signature Tourism Australia
industry events, including the Australian Tourism Exchange
(ATE), held in Perth in 2012, and Dreamtime, which connects
Australian incentive sellers with international buyers.

“Qantas has supported Tourism
Australia’s Dreamtime event since its
inception, so we were delighted to
sponsor Dreamtime 2011, showcasing
Australia to the international incentive
travel trade. Dreamtime is an ideal
opportunity to celebrate and promote
the wealth of tourism products and
services Australia offers to the world.”
– Stephen Thompson, Executive Manager
Global Sales, Qantas
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During summer 2011/12, the third season of the
Australian television series No Leave No Life attracted more
than 6.34 million viewers and an average of second place
in its timeslot. The series was commissioned by Tourism
Australia to showcase unique holiday experiences for the
domestic market. It was produced in partnership with
seven state and territory tourism organisations, Virgin
Australia and Endemol Southern Star.
No Leave No Life featured two major Australian events,
two Tourism Australia Indigenous Champions, seven
regional destinations and more than 60 tourism business
operators. The series encouraged Australians to put their
accumulated annual leave towards a domestic holiday.
Following on from the success of the two previous series,
the program featured Australians being surprised with
a trip to their dream Australian holiday destination and
showed Australians that some of their best holiday
memories could be generated on their own shores.

Virgin Australia
TripAdvisor – tailoring travellers’ Australian adventures
Tourism Australia and popular travel review website
TripAdvisor launched a year-long campaign to encourage
long-haul travellers in Western markets to take an
Australian holiday. The campaign featured an interactive
planning tool on TripAdvisor’s sites in Canada, France,
Germany, Italy, the UK and the USA.
Users could develop their own Australian itineraries
based on the Australian city in which they would start
their visit, preferred experiences and length of stay. The
tool also incorporated ratings and reviews from other
TripAdvisor users.

Stephen Thompson, Executive Manager Global Sales, Qantas, addresses
ATE 2012, Perth, Western Australia

No Leave No Life shows Australians the beauty in their
own backyards

Tourism Australia and Virgin Australia signed a strategic
marketing MoU in May 2012, aimed at using the airline’s
growing network of international alliances to boost visits
from 10 of Australia’s key overseas markets. Through its
alliances with four of the world’s leading airlines – Air
New Zealand, Delta Airlines, Etihad Airways and Singapore
Airlines – Virgin Australia can access international visitors
from more than 400 cities around the world.
Tourism Australia and Virgin Australia intend to spend
a combined $6 million on marketing between 2012 and
2015. A range of joint marketing activities will focus

primarily on Continental Europe, New Zealand, the UK
and the USA, as well as the fast-growing markets of China,
India, Indonesia, Japan, Singapore and Korea.
Marketing campaigns will use traditional and digital media
channels, and include event and sponsorship activities. The
principle targets are the USA leisure and business travel
markets, encouraging visitors through the key Trans Pacific
corridor. Marketing activities will use the There’s nothing like
Australia campaign alongside Virgin Australia’s compelling
brand and competitive airfares to encourage bookings.

“In today’s global village, which contains
unprecedented destination competition,
important partnerships such as the
MoU with Virgin Australia and its
global alliance partners adds massive
value to Tourism Australia’s marketing
efforts, helping us better sell Australia.”
– Andrew McEvoy, Managing Director,
Tourism Australia
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Malaysia Airlines in France
On Australia Day 2012, Tourism Australia launched
its largest ever integrated airline partnership with
Malaysia Airlines.
The online and outdoor media campaign kicked off in
France using the There’s nothing like Australia brand.
Key components included advertising in Paris metro
stations, value-for-money airfares, tactical online
promotions and attractive products from distribution
partners. The campaign also incorporated a major radio
promotion, a media familiarisation visit and two Aussie
Specialist agent familiarisation visits to Australia.
Malaysia Airlines reported a 196 per cent increase in sales
after the campaign. In addition, the campaign delivered
strong media coverage, an increase in Aussie Specialist
registrations and a spike in unique visitors to australia.com.

Speedo and the Italian national swim team share why
There’s nothing like Australia
In September 2011, Tourism Australia, Destination NSW,
Tourism Victoria and Tourism Queensland partnered with
swimwear brand Speedo for the Unforgettable Swim
promotion in Italy. The promotion featured five members
of the Italian swim team, including Captain Filippo
Magnini, who participated in a nine-day visit to some of
Australia’s best travel destinations in Cairns, Melbourne,
Port Stephens, Sydney and the Great Barrier Reef.
The swim team was joined by Italy’s national broadcaster
RAI and leading publishing house Condé Nast (which
publishes Vanity Fair and Condé Nast Traveller) to share the
swim stars’ experiences in Australia with Italian audiences.
The promotion was a great example of Tourism Australia’s
emphasis on word-of-mouth advocacy to bring There’s
nothing like Australia to life in 2011/12. The promotion
included a competition to win one of six trips to Australia.
Winners shared their experiences, hopefully inspiring
many more Italians to holiday in Australia.

Mr & Mrs Smith showcase the best of Australia to
affluent Brits
In June 2012, Tourism Australia launched an editorial
partnership in the UK with boutique travel experts
Mr & Mrs Smith. The partnership aims to showcase
Australia’s best experiences and properties in Australia to
affluent British travellers.
Mr & Mrs Smith featured the There’s nothing like Australia
video on its website, and was supported with digital
advertising and a competition to win a luxury two-week
holiday in Australia. The Sunday Times also distributed a
24-page mini booklet featuring content about the ‘Best of
Australia’ to more than 319,000 consumers in London and
South East England.

Jetstar partnership to stimulate travel from Japan

In October 2011, Tourism Australia signed a $10 million
marketing deal with Jetstar to boost Japanese inbound
tourism and further expand Australia’s presence in the Asia
Pacific. The three-year agreement will see Tourism Australia
and Jetstar each contribute at least $1.6 million per year on
joint marketing activities, promoting more affordable air
travel and Australia’s unique attractions to increase arrivals
from China, Indonesia, Japan, Malaysia, New Zealand
and Singapore.

In February 2012, Tourism Australia launched a campaign
in Japan with Jetstar and Destination NSW. The campaign
aims to stimulate travel to Sydney and beyond with oneway fares starting as low as $190. The campaign was the
first tranche of activity under the Tourism Australia–Jetstar
MoU signed in late 2011. In the first two weeks of the
campaign, 2,800 consumers booked flights to Australia
through Jetstar’s website.

Great Golf Courses of Australia
A major new partnership
between Australian golf
and tourism industries was
launched in November 2011.
The Great Golf Courses of
Australia partnership will
use the appeal of Australia’s
best golf courses to position
the country as one of the world’s leading golf tourism
destinations. The collaboration between the country’s
premier golf courses, Tourism Australia, state and territory
tourism organisations and the Professional Golfers’
Association of Australia aims to tap into the tourism
potential of a sport worth $3 billion annually to the
Australian economy.
The program was launched during the Presidents Cup
in Melbourne and the campaign was represented at
various events in Europe, North America, China and at
the Australian Tourism Exchange. This initiative is part in
a program of ‘best of’ marketing initiatives that Tourism
Australia will continue to support.

“We are using our six World Top 100 ranked golf courses (US Golf Magazine 2011) to
showcase the exceptional array of golfing products Australia has to offer. By taking
advantage of the marketing and distribution offered by this partnership, we can
establish Australia as one of the world’s truly great golfing destinations.” – Liz Sattler,
Director, Great Golf Courses of Australia

Jetstar

“This partnership will promote Australia’s attractiveness as a destination for international
tourists, using Jetstar’s low fares to encourage arrivals. The potential flow-on benefits
for Australia’s important leisure destinations are huge.” – Bruce Buchanan, former CEO,
Jetstar Group
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Hot Air Ballooning, Canberra, ACT
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Development focus
Developing the destination
To attract target customers and ensure Australia is
promoted as a competitive tourism destination, Australian
tourism needs not only effective marketing campaigns,
but also consistently high-quality infrastructure, products
and experiences.
In 2011, the Minister for Resources, Energy and Tourism,
the Hon Martin Ferguson AM MP revised his Statement
of Expectations for Tourism Australia to include working
collaboratively with Australian Government departments
and agencies to facilitate tourism investment and
additional sustainable air services to Australia.
These new areas complement Tourism Australia’s
continuing work to promote Indigenous tourism
development and quality tourism products, and to
strengthen the travel distribution system. The organisation
is working to achieve these goals by marketing the
National Tourism Accreditation Framework (T-QUAL),
training travel agents and managing a range of national
and international trade events that promote Australia as a
destination for leisure and business events travel.

Driving investment opportunities
To achieve the goals of Tourism 2020, Tourism Australia
needs to increase the number of hotel rooms available to
tourists, particularly in capital cities.
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Since 2009, accommodation occupancy rates have
increased by 3.4 per cent and revenue per available room
has increased by 13 per cent. However, the number of
rooms available in capital cities has only increased by
2.7 per cent.
These statistics highlight a growing need for investment
in accommodation. Despite continuing growth in
accommodation occupancy rates, the number of available
beds has not kept pace with customer needs, constraining
growth in the tourism industry. For example, research by
Access Economics in 2010 estimated that hotel supply
shortages in Perth resulted in losses of around 330,000
visitor nights worth $46 million between 2006/07 and
2008/09. This is equivalent to a loss of 200 jobs in the state
economy and $213 million in exports.
During 2011/12, Tourism Australia focused on developing
and implementing a targeted stakeholder engagement
program for prospective investors in accommodation
and property. Tourism Australia chaired a state and
territory tourism investment forum – the Investment
Attraction Partnership Group (IAPG). The IAPG brought
together state tourism and development leaders, and
representatives from Austrade and the Department of
Resources, Energy and Tourism to develop an Australian
network on tourism investment.

New partnership targets greater investment in
tourism products
In May 2012, Tourism Australia, the Department of
Resources, Energy and Tourism, and Austrade launched
a new strategic partnership to attract investment in
Australian tourism. The partnership aims to promote
investment opportunities across the Australian tourism
industry to foreign and local investors.
Tourism Australia, Austrade and the Department
unveiled several new communication tools as part of the
partnership, including the Australian Tourism Investment
Guide, the Tourism Investment Monitor, a marketing
video and a new website, tourisminvestment.com.au.
The investment guide outlines up to 80 investment-ready
tourism projects in capital cities and regional areas across
Australian states and territories, and the website ensures
this information is kept up to date.
The partnership has also supported a number of overseas
investment activities. On 30 May 2012, Tourism Australia,
Austrade, Jones Lang La Salle, and state and territory
tourism organisations presented to more than
40 investment businesses in London. The presentation was
followed on 1 June by a ministerial investment round table

hosted by Minister Ferguson in Bangkok. Eighteen current
and potential investors discussed benefits and barriers to
investing in Australia and how these can be overcome.
Tourism Australia also held a two-day tourism investment
program in Shanghai on 4 and 5 June 2012, coinciding
with the official launch of phase two of the There’s nothing
like Australia campaign in China. Twelve Australian
representatives from nine companies with investmentready properties took part in the program. Events included
a ministerial round table meeting, which discussed the
current investment environment and how investment in
Australia could be increased, followed by a discussion with
12 potential Chinese investors and presentations from
the Australian delegates. An investment launch was also
held in Seoul on 29 June 2012, attended by 49 industry,
investment and government representatives.
Tourism Australia will continue its investment partnership
activities in 2012/13, including two domestic investment
briefings in Sydney and Melbourne in September 2012, and
a series of parallel Australian tourism investment events
with Austrade at the Hotel Investment Conference Asia
Pacific (HICAP) in Hong Kong.

The forum also provided state and territory input into
the Australian Tourism Investment Guide by highlighting
investment-ready tourism projects around the country.

Perth, Western Australia
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Focus on quality
Developing culturally sensitive products and delivering high-quality tourism
experiences is the foundation for Australia’s competitive advantage.
Tourism Australia works with the tourism industry, the
Tourism Quality Council of Australia and the Department
of Resources, Energy and Tourism to help improve the
quality of tourism products, services and information
about Australia that is available for visitors, and access to
Australia and destinations across the country.
In 2011/12, the organisation focused on improving
information and standards by promoting the T-QUAL
accreditation program, the Aussie Specialist Program and a
variety of trade events and business development activities.

number of standards, including risk and environmental
management and customer service.
T-QUAL has accredited 13,000 Australian tourism products
through 11 quality assurance schemes.
Tourism Australia began promoting T-QUAL accreditation
in December 2011 with an integrated consumer campaign
and dedicated industry marketing (see table below). Postcampaign research found that awareness of the 2011/12
consumer marketing campaign reached 15 per cent, well
above initial targets of 5 per cent.

Quality tourism experiences get the T-QUAL tick
of assurance
Travellers can now easily recognise quality Australian
tourism experiences with a new national symbol – the
T-QUAL tick. The T-QUAL tick differentiates between
tourism products and services based on guaranteed
quality. T-QUAL-approved businesses must adhere to a set
of licence and insurance requirements, and commit to a

The Indigenous Tourism Champions Program is delivered
by Tourism Australia and Indigenous Business Australia
(IBA), with significant involvement and support from the
Department of Education, Employment and Workplace
Relations, and state and territory tourism organisations.
The program promotes and supports businesses that offer
authentic Indigenous tourism experiences.
The collaborative national program was expanded in
2011/12 to support a full mentoring program from
IBA. Tourism Australia and IBA aligned their marketing
and mentoring strategies to provide the best possible
exposure for the Indigenous Tourism Champions,
while ensuring they offer the highest quality tourism
experiences to international travellers. The program has
been extremely well received by tourism businesses and
by the tourism industry, which is now actively supporting
the program’s participants.

documented business and marketing plans and booking
mechanisms for domestic and international markets,
and demonstrating an understanding of the customer
service environment.
This ensures the products will meet the needs and
expectations of the Indigenous tourism industry and the
international tourism market.
The website provides information to help travellers plan
itineraries, including ideas about where to go in Australia
for an authentic Indigenous experience. It also offers pricing
and booking information. The site showcases recently
produced vignettes and photographs of Indigenous tourism
experiences, which can be downloaded.

New website – showcasing Indigenous
tourism experiences

Matt Moran at the T-Qual Tick tour launch, ARIA Restaurant, Sydney,
22 March 2012

T-QUAL consumer campaign

Marketing component

Highlights

Preferential listing of T-QUAL-endorsed
products on Tourism Australia’s
consumer website, australia.com.

More than 3,900 accredited tourism products are now preferentially listed
on australia.com.

A T-QUAL microsite on TripAdvisor’s
Australian website to showcase
TripAdvisor’s listings of T-QUALendorsed products.

TripAdvisor is the world’s largest universal travel site, used by 44 million
consumers globally to plan and book travel. The T-QUAL accreditation
microsite was TripAdvisor’s first microsite with a tourism quality assurance
program. The company recorded almost 80,000 unique visitors to the site
during the launch phase.

Digital advertising across Australian
travel planning sites to raise consumer
awareness of the T-QUAL tick and direct
them to the T-QUAL accreditation
microsite on TripAdvisor.

Tourism Australia commissioned 19 million online advertisements across key
Australian travel planning websites, generating more than 11,000 visits to
the T-QUAL TripAdvisor microsite.

Showcase T-QUAL-endorsed products
by travelling around Australia with
celebrity chef Matt Moran on a T-QUAL
Tick Tour, to generate media interest and
coverage of his experiences.

The T-QUAL Tick Tour visited 57 T-QUAL-endorsed operators in New South
Wales, Northern Territory, South Australia, Tasmania, Queensland, Victoria
and Western Australia. It generated 155 media articles, with an advertising
value equivalent to more than $1.2 million. Throughout the tour, Matt
Moran wrote about his experiences on the T-QUAL Tick Tour Blog, which
linked to his Twitter and Facebook pages. These pages have 25,000 fans and
8,300 followers respectively.

Print advertising in Fairfax newspapers.

Print advertisements were published in The Good Weekend, The Sydney
Morning Herald, The Age and The Canberra Times.
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The Indigenous Tourism Champions Program

In April 2012, Tourism Australia launched a new
Indigenous tourism trade website:
aboriginaltourism.australia.com.
The website profiles Tourism Australia’s Indigenous
Tourism Champions and only markets businesses which
conform to a set of export-ready criteria, such as having

Aussie Specialist Program

ASP voted top e-learning program

The Aussie Specialist Program is a dedicated initiative to
engage and train travel agents about Australian tourism.
At 30 June 2012, Tourism Australia had 12,263 qualified
agents and 23,261 registered agents from 110 countries.
The program is available in 14 languages.

A global survey by the University of Lugano, Switzerland of
more than 1,000 travel agents named the Aussie Specialist
Program the ‘most appreciated course’ out of the
69 e-learning courses offered by destination management
organisations. The research also showed that 67 per cent of
travel agents claim to have sold a holiday after online Aussie
Specialist training and 53 per cent feel confident about
selling a destination after they have completed a course.

Tourism Australia’s Corroboree is an important retail
training event attended by Aussie Specialist agents.
Corroboree 2011 – The Americas was held in Melbourne,
Victoria from Saturday 29 to Monday 31 October 2011
to educate Aussie Specialist agents from the USA and
Canada on Australian tourism products and experiences.
The event focuses on cultivating relationships and
building new business for the Australian tourism industry.
Event partners included Brendan Vacations, DownUnder
Answers, Goway, Qantas, Qantas Vacations, Swain Tours
and Virgin Australia.
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Business events education familiarisation trips
During 2011/12, Business Events Australia ran
12 familiarisation visits for business events decision
makers from China, Europe, Hong Kong, India, New
Zealand, Korea, the UK and the USA. Familiarisation trips
give members of the international business community
the chance to experience Australia’s tourism products,
attractions and experiences for themselves. Tourism
Australia conducts business event familiarisation visits in
collaboration with the Australian tourism industry, state
and territory tourism organisations, and business events
agencies across Australia.

buyers and media to experience incentive and travel
products in Adelaide, Cairns, the Gold Coast, Melbourne,
Perth, Uluru and the Whitsundays.
In 2011/12, Tourism Australia managed 30 international
trade shows, travel markets and trade missions around the
world. Tourism Australia staff also participated in a range
of trade events in Australia and overseas that promoted
Australia as a destination for leisure and business events
travel. This participation helped build new business
relationships and distribution networks for Australian
tourism products and experiences.

Aviation growth critical to success
Business events familiarisation visit for Indian
corporate buyers
Tourism Australia, Business Events Sydney and the
Melbourne Convention and Visitors Bureau hosted a
familiarisation visit for corporate buyers from Thomas
Cook in India to showcase Sydney and Melbourne as two of
the world’s best destinations for incentive travel.
The buyers spent seven days visiting new and unique
Australian venues and discovering natural attractions that
can be offered as a rewarding experience to re-energise
high achievers.

Dreamtime 2011 – Australian business events and
incentives profiled
In November 2011, Tourism Australia held Dreamtime, its
signature event for showcasing Australia as a destination
for business events. The event was held in Sydney, in
partnership with Qantas and Business Events Sydney.
Dreamtime’s business and networking program enabled
72 international buyers from 14 countries to meet with a
variety of Australia’s business events companies. The event
also featured three days of educational visits that enabled

A competitive aviation environment underpins Tourism
Australia’s ability to achieve the Tourism 2020 goals. To
support the continuous development of the Australian
aviation industry, in 2011/12 Tourism Australia worked
with airlines, airports, and state and territory tourism
organisations to identify gaps and opportunities in the
market. This knowledge was used to add value to the
tourism work already underway by states and regional
aviation organisations and airports.
Tourism Australia collaborated with these organisations
to increase the capacity and frequency of flights by
developing new routes; identifying gaps in route networks
that could be filled by charters or regular scheduled
services; and working to increase capacity on key existing
routes during peak travel periods.

International airline activity continues to rise
In 2011/12, the Australian aviation industry experienced
solid growth in passenger numbers. There was an increase in
international air passengers travelling to and from Australia,
with passenger numbers increasing by 4.8 per cent to reach
a record 29 million visitors movements. Six different low-cost
carriers experienced gradual growth over the year and now
account for 14 per cent of international passenger traffic.
During the year, Tourism Australia invested $14.5 million
in cooperative marketing campaigns with 20 international
airlines. With the airlines’ contributions, total marketing
spend reached $30 million. Tourism Australia also invested
$2 million to promote new aviation routes to Australia.
These funds were matched by Australian state and territory
tourism organisations and airports.

Dreamtime, November 2011, Sydney, New South Wales
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A number of new airline routes also opened in Australia,
including Air Asia’s Kuala Lumpur to Sydney route, Scoot’s
Singapore to Sydney and Singapore to the Gold Coast routes,
Silk Air’s Singapore to Darwin route and Qatar Airways’ Doha
to Perth route. China Eastern Airlines and China Southern
Airlines also commenced new services to Cairns (announced
August 2012).

Australian Tourism Exchange
The Australian Tourism Exchange (ATE) is the largest
business-to-business tourism trade show of its kind in
the southern hemisphere. It is the result of a long-term
partnership between Tourism Australia, Qantas, and state
and territory tourism organisations (which host the event
in rotation). ATE provides a forum for Australian tourism
businesses to showcase their products, meet overseas
contacts and negotiate business deals.
More than 700 international buyers from 40 countries
made up to 100,000 appointments with Australian tourism
operators during the event. ATE also provides international
travel businesses with the opportunity to experience
Australia firsthand.

Following an ongoing review of ATE, as well as feedback
from members of the tourism industry and ATE 2013 host
Destination NSW, the current format separating ‘East’ and
‘West’ modules will be changed to include a single, shorter
and sharper global event next year.
The new format will reduce the traditional seven-day event
to five days, including an opening day dedicated to delegate
registration and activities including market briefings and
media activities, followed by four days of appointments.
These changes will only apply to ATE 2013 in Sydney.

This year, ATE was hosted by Tourism Western Australia in
Perth in June 2012.
As is traditional, the event was divided into two modules,
allowing exhibitors to target the markets most appropriate
for their tourism product. The Eastern module targeted
buyers from Japan, Asia and the Gulf Countries while the
Western module targeted buyers from Africa, the Asia
Pacific, Europe, New Zealand, the UK and the USA.
International buyers attended the module relevant to
where their company is based. Australian exhibitors could
participate in one or both modules.
The week-long event injected around $10 million into the
local economy and generated approximately 13,000 visitor
nights in Perth. The event also enabled Tourism Australia to
position Perth and Australia as leading holiday destinations.

One-voice approach develops aviation opportunities

New route launched by China Southern Airlines

In an effort to attract new international aviation capacity
and achieve Tourism 2020’s growth strategy, in April 2012
Tourism Australia led a high-level delegation of Australia’s
major airports to Asia’s leading aviation route development
forum – Routes Asia.

In September 2011, Tourism Australia launched a
partnership campaign with China Southern Airlines and
Tourism Western Australia. The campaign promoted China
Southern Airlines’ new Guangzhou to Perth service, which
began in November 2011.

The event was held in the city of Chengdu, the largest aviation
hub in central western China. Tourism Australia Managing
Director Andrew McEvoy and General Manager – Destination
Development Craig Davidson headed the delegation.

“Tourism Australia’s approach allows us to increase the appeal of Australia as a
destination and improve efficiencies for Brisbane Airport and associated airlines.
We can draw from the strength of the Australian brand and better demonstrate
the unique capabilities of Brisbane Airport as a gateway to Australia.” – Julieanne
Alroe, Chief Executive and Managing Director, Brisbane Airport
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Government focus
Collaborative partnerships present a strong brand
for Australia
In 2011/12, Tourism Australia took a collaborative, wholeof-government approach to its operations, working in
partnership with Australian-based and offshore Australian
Government departments and agencies.
Tourism Australia’s key government partners during the
year included the Department of Resources, Energy and
Tourism; the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade;
Austrade; Parks Australia; the Department of Immigration
and Citizenship; and the Department of Infrastructure
and Transport.
Tourism Australia’s relationships with Austrade and
Australian embassies worldwide helped the organisation
represent the interests of the Australian tourism
industry in international markets through meetings with
representatives of foreign governments, ministerial visits,
and the work of key international tourism wholesalers
and distributors.

One voice
Tourism Australia continued to work closely with state and
territory tourism organisations to ensure international
tourism activities were integrated and aligned under the
one-voice initiative.
Chief executives and heads of marketing from Tourism
Australia, and state and territory tourism organisations
have met on a number of occasions to discuss
development and implementation plans for six main areas:
the There’s nothing like Australia campaign, aviation,
events, public relations, trade events and trade missions.

Promoting Australia’s National Landscapes
Over the past year, the Australia’s National Landscapes
Program grew from 10 to 13 landscapes, including the Great
South West Edge, Ningaloo–Shark Bay and the Great Barrier
Reef. It is also currently assessing three further landscapes.
The National Landscapes Reference Committee agreed
to focus program resources on this suite of landscapes,
to develop their capacity to deliver world-class visitor
experiences and to improve the conservation of their natural
and cultural assets. To enable focus to remain on these
landscapes, Tourism Australia will not consider any new
applications to join the program in 2012/13.
During the year, Tourism Australia promoted Australia’s
national landscapes through a number of channels,
including a dedicated microsite on australia.com.
Destinations from Australia’s National Landscapes Program
featured in more than 200 domestic print publications as
part of the There’s nothing like Australia and No Leave No
Life campaigns. They also appeared in 11 editions of the
Downunder Travel Bulletin, which is distributed to 11,800
travel industry professionals worldwide in print and online.
The program established ‘Story Teller’ groups for each
landscape to generate ‘new news’ for Tourism Australia’s
Media Program, resulting in 109 articles. In addition,
Aussie Specialist national landscape training modules were
released in both English and German, with 500 agents
completing the module during the year.
Tourism Australia and Parks Australia also produced
guidebooks for each national landscape, designed to increase
the understanding of each landscape’s unique point of
difference and how this can be used to promote it. In addition,
the program members revised the Australia’s National
Landscapes Program brochure, which was then downloaded
300 times from Tourism Australia’s corporate website.

Australia’s National Landscapes Program
Australia’s National Landscapes Program is an innovative partnership led by Tourism Australia and Parks Australia.
The program promotes Australia’s most remarkable natural and cultural environments as tourism assets and aims to
improve the quality of visitor experiences. The partnership includes the National Landscapes Reference Committee,
comprising government agencies Tourism Australia, Parks Australia and the Department of Resources, Energy and
Tourism, as well as representatives from key Australian tourism, ecotourism, academic and conservation sectors.
The program has four goals in support of the Tourism 2020 strategy:

40 Government Focus

Murraylands, South Australia

• establish and promote the suite of national landscapes

• build networks and partnerships

•d
 evelop and implement strategies to improve the
experiences offered to visitors

• c reate tools to help stakeholders promote and develop
these environments
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People and organisation
Quality Australian experiences for the China market
Tourism Australia and the Department of Resources,
Energy and Tourism have worked together to provide
the tourism industry with research and insights that will
help them develop high-quality products and experiences
tailored to the needs of the Chinese consumer.
In 2011/12, Tourism Australia developed a Quality
Australian Experiences Action Plan in consultation with
the tourism industry, and state and territory tourism
organisations. The plan identifies key priorities for the
Chinese market and the main agencies responsible for
developing initiatives to increase the quality of Chinese
visitors’ experiences.
Tourism Australia and the Department of Resources,
Energy and Tourism also enhanced their joint China
Approved Destination Status (ADS) scheme. The China ADS
scheme allows Australia to host leisure tour groups from
China and permits the Australian Government, through
Tourism Australia, to promote Australia as a leisure travel
destination in China.
During the year, Tourism Australia expanded its Aussie
Specialist Program network in China to more than 6,000
registered travel agents. Aussie Specialist agents help
travellers with visa processing and complete training about
Australian tourism destinations and experiences.
Tourism Research Australia developed a range of visitor
satisfaction questions about the quality of Australian tour
experiences, tour guides, shopping and payment, which
were included in the International Visitor Survey in early
2012. Insights from this research will help the tourism
industry develop more tailored products and services for
the Chinese market.

overseeing the progress of the Australian tourism industry
under Tourism 2020, a whole-of-government and industry
strategy for Australian tourism’s sustainable future growth
from today’s $96 billion annual contribution.
The 2011 ATDC was held in Canberra on 13 October 2011.
It was attended by senior government, industry and
business figures, who gathered to discuss how to create an
‘appealing Australia now and into the future’.

A survey of delegates showed that 82 per cent of
respondents rated the overall event ‘good’ to ‘excellent’,
while 69 per cent indicated they would attend ATDC 2012.
A good majority of respondents – 73 per cent – rated the
topics covered at the ATDC and the relevance of content
‘good’ to ‘excellent’.
Following the event, Tourism Australia and the Department
of Resources, Energy and Tourism worked with state
tourism industry councils, and state and territory tourism
organisations to conduct industry briefings in Adelaide,
Brisbane, Byron Bay, Cairns, the Gold Coast, Hobart,
Melbourne, Sydney and Perth. The briefings attracted
almost 900 attendees from 1,200 registrations nationwide
and received excellent feedback, with 85 per cent of
respondents satisfied with the sessions. Two Northern
Territory briefings were also held in February 2012.

Enabling
Achievement

Taking
Ownership

Tourism Australia aims to maintain the highest standards
of honesty and trustworthiness in its business and
personal dealings at all times.
It operates on the philosophy that ‘There’s nothing like
keeping it simple and doing it well!’ This philosophy is
based on the following principles:
• There’s nothing like getting value for money. Tourism
Australia’s staff are encouraged to treat every dollar as
if it was their own. This means being accountable in
managing money, planning work effectively, looking for
further efficiencies and achieving value for money in
everything they do

Australian Tourism Directions Conference
The annual Australian Tourism Directions Conference
(ATDC) is the peak tourism industry meeting, addressing
the long-term opportunities for tourism, its growing
economic value and other important issues. The
conference also reports on the state of the Australian
tourism industry and delivers research and insights.
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One Team

Delegates were provided with an overview of Tourism
Research Australia’s State of the Industry report, as well
as progress updates on the National Long-Term Tourism
Strategy and the 2020 Tourism Industry Potential (these
initiatives were officially aligned in December 2011 under
the Tourism 2020 strategy).

In addition, The ‘Huang Ying Nin – Welcome Chinese
Visitors’ project was launched on 13 June 2012 to increase
the Australian tourism industry’s cultural awareness.

The ATDC attracts leaders and decision makers from the
tourism industry as well as senior Australian Government
officials, academics and media. It plays an important role in

Unifying Vision
and Goal

• There’s nothing like an enquiring mind. Staff are hungry
for knowledge and always looking for ways to improve
outcomes for Australian tourism. They are enthusiastic,
collaborative and creative thinkers and workers
Tourism Australia Managing Director Andrew McEvoy and
Chairman Geoff Dixon address the 2011 Australian Tourism
Directions Conference

Culture and engagement
Tourism Australia works with research organisation
Human Synergistics Australia to assess levels of workplace
culture and engagement every year. Eighty-nine per cent
of staff completed the survey this year, compared with
86 per cent in 2011.
Overall, the results of the 2012 survey were very
encouraging and showed that culture and engagement at
Tourism Australia has improved since 2011. Respondents
said the organisation has stabilised, is moving forward
with greater certainty and is progressing well in building a
more constructive culture. There was double-digit growth
across desirable, constructive behaviours and a doubledigit drop in negative, passive and aggressive behaviours.
In addition, the staff engagement index increased from
69 per cent to 75 per cent and the role clarity index
increased from 79 per cent to 84 per cent.

• There’s nothing like sharing for success. For Tourism
Australia to achieve its goals, everyone needs to work
together cooperatively and professionally. Staff are
respectful and trusting of others, collaborate freely, focus
on the customer, and use their expertise and experience
to get the best possible results
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Australian Government
performance reporting
As described in the Australian Government Portfolio
Budget Statements, Tourism Australia’s contribution to the
tourism industry is to ‘increase demand for Australia as a
destination, strengthen the travel distribution system and
contribute to the development of a sustainable tourism
industry through consumer marketing, trade development
and research activities’.
Tourism Australia delivers on this high-level outcome
through the following three Australian Government
set programs:
1.	 Increase demand for Australia as a destination.
2.	 Develop the industry.
3.	 Strengthen the travel distribution system.

Achievements in 2011/12
Program 1: Increase demand for Australia as a destination
Objective: Identify and target best prospect consumers
and inspire them to travel to Australia, by focusing
activities and resources and taking a dedicated market
categorisation approach.
Targeted consumers who are predisposed to travel to
Australia and who will spend more and do more when
they are here.
Highlights
• Increased international and domestic travel by putting
the target customer at the centre of all program activity,
building Australia’s reputation and profile as an exciting
and desirable leisure and business events destination,
and driving demand, growth in visitor numbers and
increased visitor expenditure.

• F ocused on markets in countries that represented the
greatest potential for expenditure growth by 2020,
including those with strong latent demand, purpose of
visit and aviation capacities.

• Introduced a new business events campaign in October
2011 – There’s nothing like Australia for Business Events
– which highlighted the incentive and event experiences
that ‘money can’t buy’ on offer in Australia.

• Shifted marketing strategy towards Asia, which Tourism
Australia sees as a tourism ‘growth engine’ for the next
decade, while ensuring a continuing focus on a balanced
portfolio of markets.

• Generated five hours of Australian coverage on four
Indian television channels – Star Sports, Times Now,
NDTV and CNN IBN – by supporting 10 leading travel
journalists to accompany the Indian cricket tour of
Australia in December 2011 and January 2012. The
Australian destination content was broadcast in April
2012 and included 45-second vignettes and 30-minute
television programs.

Developed engaging marketing communications
using appropriate messages in effective channels,
with a focus on digital platforms, and continued with
There’s nothing like Australia campaign activity, further
embedding it across tourism markets, including in the
business events sector.
Highlights
• Sponsored television program My Kind of Place –
Australia shown in New Zealand in July 2011. The
program encouraged New Zealanders to travel beyond
Australian gateways and brought them new and exciting
information about Australian holidays.
• Developed an integrated program of activity with Air
New Zealand to convert interest generated by My Kind of
Place – Australia into visits to Australia.
• Launched a partnership campaign with China Southern
Airlines and Tourism Western Australia. The campaign
promoted China Southern Airline’s new Guangzhou to
Perth service, which began in November 2011.

•P
 ositioned Australia competitively, targeting consumers
who are predisposed to travel to Australia and who will
spend more and do more when they travel here. Tourism
Australia adopted this group as its global primary
target in 2011/12, although the demographics and
psychographics of the group vary by market.
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• Partnered with Fairfax and Qantas on a New Zealand
There’s nothing like Australia campaign, which featured
100 Australian ‘must do’ experiences from top travel
editors, coupled with good-value airfares from Qantas.
• Secured a new television show in New Zealand for 2012
– Judy Bailey’s Australia. Five one-hour episodes aired in
June 2012 using a ‘host on the road’ format.
• Launched the biggest ever airline partnership in the
French market, with Malaysia Airlines. The There’s
nothing like Australia campaign yielded strong results,
with the airline reporting a 196 per cent increase in sales.
• Developed an online campaign with Singapore Airlines
in late 2011, offering a special fare to Australia between
2 February and 21 June 2012 and a free Australia travel
guide for the first 100 bookings. Online promotion
included videos and advertising of Australian experiences
on popular French lifestyle websites, such as TF1,
Le Routard, TripAdvisor and Yahoo.
 rought highly popular Chinese celebrities Show Lo and
•B
Rainie Yang to Australia in late February 2012 to advocate
Australia through Discover your Australia, a five-episode
online drama series that was viewed 118 million times on
Chinese social media site tudou.com, as well as a number
of digital, media, consumer and trade promotions.

• F ocused marketing resources on international corporate
conference and incentive agents and corporate decision
makers and associations. Tourism Australia aimed to take
advantage of the business events sector’s capacity to
deliver high-yielding visitors who are likely to return.
•C
 ontinued to develop strong relationships between
Business Events Australia and international buyers in key
markets, including a dedicated effort in the professional
associations sector.

• Launched a Japanese campaign with Jetstar and
Destination NSW in February 2012, to stimulate travel to
Sydney and beyond. Fares started from $190 one-way and
helped generate 2,800 consumer bookings through the
Jetstar website in the first two weeks of the campaign.

• L aunched a German youth campaign offering working
holiday makers the chance to win one of six ‘money can’t
buy’ working holidays in Australia. The online and social
media campaign targeted the 67,000 German fans on
Tourism Australia’s Facebook page.
Frank Bunce and Josh Kronfeld experience a bi-plane adventure on the
South Coast of NSW in Tourism Australia’s New Zealand television series
My Kind of Place – Australia

Used research and expertise to match relevant products
and experiences with target audiences, including
product bundling to present the best experiences
Australia has to offer.
Highlights
• Launched the international Consumer Demand
Project, to increase understanding of what motivates
target customers.
•P
 artnered with accommodation and golf providers to
promote Australia’s best luxury lodge properties and
quintessential golf experiences.
•P
 rofiled ‘best of’ Australian holiday experiences in phase
two of the There’s nothing like Australia campaign,
launched in June 2012.
Partnered with the national and international tourism
industry, distributors and the media to engage target
customers and enable them to easily access Australian
tourism products.
Highlights
• Partnered with 20 airlines in 16 international markets
to promote Australia, collectively spending more than
$30 million on There’s nothing like Australia campaigns.
The top six airline partners in 2011/12 were China
Southern Airlines, Emirates, Jetstar, Qantas, Singapore
Airlines and Virgin Australia.
•P
 artnered with Destination NSW and Singaporean airline
Scoot to promote Scoot’s new low-cost service to Sydney,
which began in June 2012. Also partnered with Scoot to
promote its new Gold Coast service.
•P
 artnered with Destination NSW and Air Asia X in
Malaysia to promote the airline’s new Kuala Lumpur to
Sydney service. Developed a partnership between Tourism
Northern Territory and SilkAir in Germany, Hong Kong and
the UK to promote the new Singapore to Darwin service,
which launched in March 2012.
•P
 artnered with Tourism Western Australia and Qatar
Airways in the UK and Germany to promote Qatar’s new
Doha to Perth service, which commenced in June 2012.
•P
 artnered with Jetstar in Japan to promote low-cost fares
to Australia.
•P
 artnered with Air New Zealand, Delta Airlines, Virgin
Australia, United Airlines, Tourism Queensland, Tourism
Tropical North Queensland and the South Australia
Tourism Commission on USA-based campaigns to
promote low-season offers to Australia.
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•P
 artnered with Qantas and American Airlines in the USA
to promote the Aussie Pass range, providing value-formoney offers on return international flights and three
Australian domestic sectors. The American Airlines
partnership provided access to a new customer base
through its in-flight magazine, website and frequent
flyer database.
•P
 artnered with Qantas in Germany and France to
offer a discount on domestic sectors when booking an
international flight to Australia.
• L aunched an enhanced map on the There’s nothing like
Australia website, with new features such as itineraries,
reviews, videos and links to accommodation and
transport, and invited German customers to upload their
travel experiences.
 artnered with STA travel and seven state and territory
•P
tourism organisations in the UK on a two-month
Facebook campaign, highlighting the benefits of a
working holiday in the current economic climate and
promoting discounted flights. At the end of April 2012,
STA’s Australia sales had increased 24 per cent compared
to April 2011.
• Invited five Italian Olympic swimmers to Melbourne,
North Queensland, Port Stephens and Sydney to
advocate Australia as part of a partnership with Speedo.
Italy’s national broadcaster RAI and publisher Condé Nast
accompanied the group.

• Hosted 269 media outlets with 889 participants as part
of the International Media Hosting and Visiting Opinion
Leader programs.
•D
 elivered 6,800 articles, reaching consumers in
30 countries, through proactive media relations and
International Media Hosting Programs. The equivalent
advertising value of this publicity is $368 million.
 rought broadcasters from major international television
•B
networks and shows to Australia, including Astro TV
from Malaysia, the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation,
Daybreak from the UK, Judy Bailey’s Australia from New
Zealand, NTV Germany, and TVB Hong Kong.
• Reached a potential audience of more than 83 million
readers per month by inviting popular opinion leaders,
including bloggers such as Wilson Ng from Malaysia
(Places and Foods), Chubby Hubby from Singapore, the
Travelocity Gnome, and six Chinese travel bloggers,
to Australia as part of the ‘Discover Australia’ group
familiarisation visit.
• Hosted 25 international media representatives at ATE,
held in Perth in June 2012.
• Increased followers on Tourism Australia’s Twitter page
(@SeeAustralia) by 88 per cent compared with 2010/11.
Tourism Australia had 27,000 followers as at 30 June 2012.
•A
 ttracted more than 12,000 followers to Tourism
Australia’s Instagram account, who submitted more than
90,000 photos, as at 30 June 2012.

 nhanced Australian tourism content in key Western
•E
markets, such as Canada, France, Germany, Italy, the UK
and the USA, by partnering with TripAdvisor to launch a
travel review website, including an interactive ‘Discover
Australia Trip Planner’, aimed at long-haul travellers.

•P
 artnered with the City of Sydney to create a threeminute video on New Year’s Eve. The video received
109,312 views on YouTube and 442,913 views on Chinese
site Tudou.

Collaborated with state and territory tourism
organisations, and Australian tourism operators such
as Qantas to develop inspirational publicity and wordof-mouth advocacy that built awareness of Australia’s
tourism products, events, experiences and destinations.

•G
 rew the ‘Friends of Australia’ program to include more
than 165 advocates, including 45 based overseas. Friends
such as Iva Davies from Icehouse, actor Callan McAuliffe
and pop stars The Grasshoppers work closely with Tourism
Australia’s Global Public Relations team to create content
and share stories about Australia using their social and
mainstream media influence and personal networks.

Highlights
Public relations
• Attracted 400,000 new Facebook fans, an increase of
22 per cent to more than 3.2 million. The Tourism Australia
Facebook page is now the largest in Australia and the most
popular tourism destination page in the world.
•D
 eveloped and implemented a global public relations
program that included social and traditional media to
support the launch of phase two of There’s nothing
like Australia.
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• I nvited Friends of Australia to participate in more than
160 opportunities to promote Australia, including
publicity articles, International Media Hosting Program
visits, events, social media and campaign activities,
reaching an anticipated audience of more than
100 million people worldwide.
•C
 ontinued to support Uluru and the Great Barrier Reef
in their bids to be included among the New7Wonders
of Nature, a global search for the world’s seven most
wondrous natural sites as voted by the public.

•D
 eveloped an Event Partnership Program, including an
Events Partnership Strategy, assessment framework,
national events calendar and prioritisation model, to
support selected Australian events and festivals and
promote Australia as a premier travel destination.
• Supported new promotional assets for Opera on Sydney
Harbour, Noosa Food and Wine Festival, Santos Tour
Down Under and Australian Open of Surfing.
Visual assets
• Distributed $50 million worth of footage and stills to the
tourism industry and the media.
• Added 900 images to the image gallery.
• I mplemented the online distribution of broadcast-quality
footage from video.australia.com.
There’s nothing like Australia
• L aunched phase two of the There’s nothing like Australia
campaign in Australia, China, the UK and the USA
on 4 June 2012. Campaign materials included a new
campaign video, a tablet app, a suite of print and digital
advertisements, and a series of cooperative templates.
 ttracted more than 16.5 million views of the new video
•A
between 4 June and 30 June 2012. The advertisement
was available on online platforms such as YouTube,
YouKu, Tudou and australia.com.
•G
 enerated more than 18,000 downloads of the new
tablet app for both Apple and Android platforms
between 4 June and 30 June 2012.
• L aunched a new mobile-enabled campaign microsite on
australia.com, combining the campaign video, imagery
and deeper destination content in an integrated and
engaging way. The campaign hub received 500,000
unique views in three weeks.
Digital marketing
•R
 elaunched australia.com in 17 languages at the end of
February 2012. Key features of the new design include
new imagery and a new content navigation structure,
as well as new search engine optimisation content.
• Created 115 campaigns for australia.com.
• L aunched m.australia.com, a new mobile site
combining the best features of the australia.com and
nothinglike.australia.com mobile sites. Traffic to the site
jumped 1,000 per cent in a month.

Cradle Mountain, Lake St Clair National Park, Tasmania
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Uluru, Northern Territory

Program 2: Developing the industry

Key Performance Indicators – Increase demand

Performance indicator

2011/12 Target

2011/12 Actual

Overnight visitor spend ($000 all purposes) –
All International and domestic overnight

$75.9 billion (year ended Dec 11)

$74.7 billion (year ended
Dec 11).

Overnight visitor spend ($000 all purposes) – 2011/12
Tourism Australia Strategic Annual Plan markets

$70.6 billion (year ended Dec 11)

Visitor spend per trip (all purposes) – 2011/12 Tourism
Australia Strategic Annual Plan markets excluding Rest
of World and Domestic
Visitor spend per night (all purposes) – 2011/12
Tourism Australia Strategic Annual Plan markets
excluding Rest of World and Domestic
Competitive market share – number of trips (all
purposes) compared with competitive set – 2011/12
Tourism Australia Strategic Annual Plan markets
excluding Rest of World and Domestic
Market Share Growth

Share of Australian travel dollars – overnight visitor
spend by Australians on interstate and intrastate
travel versus outbound travel (all purposes)
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$72.1 billion (year ended Dec 10).

$67.6 billion (year ended Dec 10).
$4,848 per trip (year ended
Dec 11)
$4,711 (year ended Dec 10).
$160 per night (year ended
Dec 11)
$143 (year ended Dec 10).
3.67% (year ended Dec 11)
3.25% (year ended Dec 10).

Achieve market share growth
targets for 14 international
markets.
55.2% spent on Australia
(year ended Sep 11)
56.5% (year ended Sep 10).

Note: IVS/NVS revisions
$70.1 billion
(year ended Dec 11).
$4,815 per trip (year
ended Dec 11).
$141 per night
(year ended Dec 11).
3.02% (year ended
Dec 11).

1 market above target
(China), rest are below.
53.9% spent on Australia
(year ended Sep 11).

Objective: Develop a competitive and sustainable
Australian tourism industry that meets the needs of target
customers. Share research insights about customer needs
with government and tourism industry organisations.
Attracted and facilitated investment in the Australian
tourism industry.
Highlights
• Announced a five-year partnership between Tourism
Australia, the Department of Resources, Energy and
Tourism, and Austrade in May 2012. The partnership will
promote investment opportunities across the Australian
tourism industry to foreign and local investors.
• Worked with key tourism industry and government
bodies through relevant Tourism 2020 Strategy Groups to
identify and promote investment opportunities.
• Developed a targeted stakeholder engagement program
with prospective investment decision makers, which
included coordinating and hosting seven roundtables
and forums for prospective investors in China, Singapore,
Korea, Taiwan, Thailand and the UK.

•S
 hared research on target customers to provide insight
into the tourism investment and development required
to meet their needs.
• Worked with key industry and government bodies
through relevant National Long-Term Tourism Working
Groups to identify and promote investment.
Implemented the China 2020 Strategic Plan –
recognising China’s importance to Australia’s
long-term future.
Highlights
• Worked in partnership with government agencies and
the tourism industry to implement the China 2020
Strategic Plan and communicate progress.
• Continued to work in collaboration with state and
territory tourism organisations and tourism industry
partners to deliver ‘one voice’ marketing activities in the
Chinese market.
• I nspired 90 per cent of people who saw the There’s
nothing like Australia campaign in China to start
researching a trip to Australia.
•P
 rovided direct access for Australian tourism operators
to Chinese consumers by translating Australian tourism
information into Chinese languages using $1 million
from the Australian Government.
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•D
 eveloped plans to build and host a Tourism Australia
website in China, providing Chinese consumers with
accessible, easy-to-use tourism information in their
own language.
•E
 nsured the Australian tourism industry can meet the
needs of Chinese consumers by investing $600,000 of
T-QUAL funding in national training, through a Welcome
Chinese Visitors Strategic Tourism Investment Grant.
• Conducted dedicated research into the behaviour and
preferences of long-haul leisure travellers to improve
understanding of what drives their travel decisions.
Consumer insights were shared widely with government
agencies and with tourism industry.
 ommissioned research into Australia’s business
•C
events opportunities in China in partnership with the
Association of Australian Convention Bureaux. The
research provides insights into how to capitalise on these
business events opportunities.
• F inalised a geographic expansion plan, providing a guide
for marketing activities in China.
• Increased Australia’s aviation market share against
competitors from 6.5 per cent in 2010 to 8.1 per cent in
2011 (International Air Transport Association) by launching
additional direct flights and new Australian destinations.
Developed and implemented the India 2020
Strategic Plan.
Highlights
•W
 orked in partnership with government agencies and
the tourism industry to develop and implement the India
2020 Strategic Plan. The plan was launched by
the Minister for Tourism the Hon Martin Ferguson, on
15 June 2012.
•S
 hared the plan’s goals with the wider tourism industry
and used it to help develop Tourism Australia’s 2012/13
Annual Operating Plan for India.

Improved access by growing sustainable and
competitive aviation capacity to and through Australia,
and addressing visa access issues.
Highlights
• Analysed industry and aviation conditions and shared
insights with government agencies and the tourism
industry to help strategic aviation decision making.
•P
 layed a leading role in developing aviation
through Memoranda of Understanding, high-level
relationships, developing new routes and cooperative
marketing campaigns.
 orked to resolve high-level issues that impede growth,
•W
including issues around visa access.
•S
 upported Australian Government departments
on Tourism Access Working Group and Air Services
Agreement bilateral negotiations, including talks with
Japan and Hong Kong.
 aised Australia’s profile with senior route development
•R
executives and attracted new services to Australia by
accompanying Australian airport representatives to the
World Route Development Forum in Berlin and Routes
Asia in Chengdu.
 ontinued to build strong relationships with global
•C
carriers, engaging with senior executives of key airlines
currently flying to Australia, as well as airlines with the
potential to fly to Australia in the future.
• I nvested $2 million in marketing support to promote new
airlines and aviation routes to Australia in 2011/12. The
investment was matched by Australian airports, state
and territory tourism organisations and airline partners.
Participated in National Long-Term Tourism Strategy
(NLTTS) Working Groups and Tourism 2020 Strategic
Groups.

• Ensure Tourism Transport Environment Supports Growth
(Tourism 2020)
• Increase Supply of Labour and Skills and Indigenous
Participation – targeted role (Tourism 2020)
• Build Industry Resilience, Productivity and Quality
(Tourism 2020)
Built product quality through accreditation.
Highlights
T-QUAL accreditation
• Raised consumer awareness of T-QUAL accreditation to
15 per cent with a new marketing campaign, significantly
higher than the 5 per cent target.
• Attracted nearly 80,000 unique visitors to the T-QUAL
microsite on TripAdvisor’s Australian website.
• Displayed 30 million advertisements on TripAdvisor’s
Australian website, delivering 32,237 clicks.
• Displayed 19 million advertisements on travel planning
websites Lonely Planet, NineMSN, Time Out, Yahoo!7, and
Say Media, delivering 11,053 clicks.
• Listed 3,935 products preferentially on australia.com.
• Generated 115 media articles from the T-QUAL Tick
Tour, with an equivalent advertising value of more than
$1 million and a potential reach of almost 40 million
consumers.
• Attracted more than 38,000 clicks to the T-QUAL Tick Tour
blog through advertising and electronic direct mails.

 ponsored industry events, including ATEC Meeting Place,
•S
Tourism and Events Excellence Conference and the Global
Eco Conference.
Promoted Indigenous tourism development.
Highlights
• Managed the Indigenous Tourism Champions Program
in conjunction with Indigenous Business Australia,
promoting Australia’s top Indigenous tourism products
and helping Champions participate in trade and media
familiarisation visits and consumer campaigns.
•E
 ducated inbound tour operators and wholesalers about
the Indigenous Tourism Champions by providing product
updates, issuing a collection of profiles on each of the
Champions and holding an Indigenous Tourism Lunch Forum.
•C
 arried out face-to-face sales training sessions for key
businesses across Germany and represented the Indigenous
Tourism Champions at the PATA German Roadshow.
• L aunched and promoted the new Indigenous Tourism
Champions trade website, which has achieved more than
2,000 visits since April 2012 (a good result for a trade
website).
•D
 istributed images of Champions to inbound tour
operators and wholesalers and the media through the
Tourism Australia Image Gallery. The Indigenous image
collection is consistently in the top five most accessed
collections on Tourism Australia’s Image Gallery.
• Implemented and reported on committed activities
under Tourism Australia’s Reconciliation Action Plan; and
developed a new Reconciliation Action Plan for 2012–14.
Promoted Australia’s National Landscapes Program.

• Hosted celebrity chef Matt Moran’s visit to 57 T-QUALendorsed operators in New South Wales, Northern
Territory, Queensland, South Australia, Tasmania, Victoria
and Western Australia during the T-QUAL Tick Tour.

Highlights

• Investment and Regulatory Reform Working Group (NLTTS)

Industry marketing

• Destination Management Planning Working Group (NLTTS)

• Developed a dedicated communications program for
tourism in Australia, which included communications
packs, webinars, newsletters, stories on Tourism
Australia’s Essentials newsletter, and a dedicated page on
Tourism Australia’s corporate website.

•G
 rew traffic to the National Landscapes microsite on
australia.com by 40 per cent year-on-year.

• Tourism Access Working Group (NLTTS)
• Industry Resilience Working Group (NLTTS)
• Tourism Quality Council of Australia (NLTTS)
• Digital Distribution Working Group (NLTTS)

• Grow Demand from Asia (Tourism 2020)

• Created international communications targeting
3,795 Aussie Specialist Agents through the Aussie
Specialist website. Five hundred Aussie Specialists entered
competitions run in India, the UK and the USA in June 2012.

• Build Competitive Digital Capability (Tourism 2020)

• Profiled the Aussie Specialist Program at ATE.

• Indigenous Tourism Development Working Group (NLTTS)
• Tourism Research Advisory Board (NLTTS)
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• Encourage Investment and Implement Regulatory Reform
(Tourism 2020)

Marketing and communications

•E
 stablished Story Teller groups in each national
landscape to deliver up-to-date news and to support
Tourism Australia’s Media program. Story Tellers produced
109 news articles about Australia’s best nature and cultural
experiences, which were delivered to journalists worldwide.
• F eatured more than 100 national landscapes in
domestic print publications for the There’s nothing like
Australia campaign.
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•P
 rofiled Australia’s National Landscape Program at
ATE in June 2012, promoting the landscapes to sellers
and buyers as the best destinations in Australia to
experience nature and culture.
•D
 elivered three short documentaries as part of the
Wildiaries Nature Series Filming Project, to profile the
diverse wildlife in Australia’s national landscapes.
•H
 osted the 3rd Annual Meeting of State Tourism and
Protected Areas Agencies in Melbourne in March 2012.
This event enabled state agencies and program managers
to share information and consider future opportunities.
 osted the 2011 National Landscapes Forum in the
•H
Australian Alps, bringing together participants from
National Landscape Steering Committees, the National
Landscapes Reference Committee and program
managers. The event inspired participants, encouraged
information sharing, and built knowledge and networks
across the program.
 roduced a 4.5-minute DVD to promote the Australia’s
•P
National Landscapes Program and communicate key
messages about the program and its benefits. The film
has been viewed more than 1,200 times on Tourism
Australia’s corporate site.
 pdated Australia’s National Landscapes Program
•U
brochure to reflect the program’s direction and
implementation framework. The brochure has been
downloaded 300 times from the Tourism Australia
corporate site.
•D
 eveloped Aussie Specialist training modules to educate
travel agents around the world on Nature in Australia.
These modules have been released in English and
German. Since the module’s launch in November 2011,
more than 500 agents have completed the module.
Strategy development

reporting and highlighted areas requiring development
in each national landscape.
•D
 eveloped a communications strategy template
for steering committees to help engage tourism
and government agencies and implement regional
communication initiatives.
Conducted and shared tourism research and insights
to help improve the development of strategies and
implementation of consumer marketing activities.
Highlights
•P
 rofiled the ‘global target customer’ by conducting
specific leisure consumer behaviour research in key
markets, including China and Australia, as well as
business events consumer behaviour research in China.
 eviewed and shared insights about changing marketing
•R
environments to help improve communication with
target customers, particularly distribution channels.

• L aunched a new program of consumer demand research,
questioning target customers about their perception of
Australian tourism products and experiences.
•C
 ontinued marketing performance research through
specific campaign evaluations across category one
markets, providing insights to help refine
marketing activities.
• Hosted the Australian Tourism Directions Conference in
Canberra in October 2011, which was attended by 259
participants, 76 per cent of whom rated the event as
‘excellent’ or ‘very good’.

• Developed a Stakeholder Engagement Framework
to clarify stakeholder groups, memberships, roles
and responsibilities.
 eveloped and shared documents and newsletters to
•D
heighten awareness and understanding of tourism
strategies. This included weekly Essentials newsletters,
which are distributed to 12,000 members of the tourism
industry via email, and the monthly Business Events
Australia newsletter, which is emailed to 3,000 members
of the tourism industry.

• Established a program implementation framework
around the ‘five Ps’ – partnerships, point of difference,
planning, protection and promotion – to streamline
program activities, steering committee work programs
and progress reporting.

•P
 artnered with state and territory tourism organisations
to hold industry briefings across all states and territories.
The briefings provided a forum for the tourism industry
to discuss success and share issues with senior Tourism
Australia executives. These events were attended by
745 participants, 78 per cent of whom rated them as
‘excellent’ or ‘very good’.
•H
 eld Market Advisory Panel meetings for China, India,
Japan, North America, Korea and the UK. The panels
provided useful insights and direction to help Tourism
Australia’s strategy development and implementation in
overseas markets.

Key Performance Indicators – Industry development

Performance indicator

2011/12 Target

2011/12 Actual

Investment – Austrade Plan deliverables

Work to achieve the Austrade
Plan deliverables according to
planned schedule.

Investment – conducting introduction/
familiarisation visits to bring investors
together in 2011/12

Starting in the third quarter of
2011/12, Tourism Australia plans
to deliver one introduction/
familiarisation visit per quarter.
Progress is being made towards
creating an additional 40,000 rooms
in capital cities by 2020.

Tourism Australia’s Austrade Plan
achievements to June 2012 were
confirmed at an Austrade and
Department of Resources, Energy
and Tourism planning day.
Completed two familiarisation
visits delivered from New Zealand
and Shanghai, China.

Investment – additional hotel rooms

Aviation – rights in selected markets (Air
Services Agreements contain capacity
entitlements that control the number of
airline seats flown between destinations)
Aviation – number of seats in selected
markets where capacity is controlled
(i.e. by Air Services Agreements)

Reporting
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Highlights

 onducted campaign concept testing to provide insight
•C
into refinements required to the There’s nothing like
Australia campaign.

• F inalised Experience Development Strategies for four
National Landscapes: the Flinders’ Ranges, Australia’s
Green Cauldron, Australia’s Coastal Wilderness and the
Australian Alps.

• Implemented a progress reporting framework, which
encouraged self-evaluation, streamlined key outcome

Engaged stakeholders.

Share of Australian travel dollars –
overnight visitor spend by Australians
on interstate and intrastate travel versus
outbound travel (all purposes)

No specific target set beyond an
increase in rights (i.e. number
of seats that can be flown) from
selected markets where capacity
is constrained.
No specific target set beyond an
increase in seats flown from selected
markets where capacity is constrained.
55.21% spent in Australia (year
ended Sep 11), was 56.47% (year
ended Sep 10).

The ABS Survey of Tourist
Accommodation’s small area data
showed rooms in capital cities
increased by 1 per cent between
March 2011 and March 2012.
Rights on selected markets
increased by 6 per cent (to
19.9 million) between March 2011
and March 2012.
Number of seats from selected
markets increased by 12 per cent
(to 7.2 million) between March
2011 and March 2012.
54.54% spent in Australia (year
ended Sep 11).

Phillip Island, Victoria
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Program 3: Strengthening the travel distribution system
Objective: Work with the tourism industry to develop and
present travel products that meet changing consumer
needs, and ensure these products are easily accessible for
potential travellers.
Continued to target distributors and sellers of
Australian travel products in Australia and overseas
to increase their knowledge and capability, help grow
business in the Australian distribution network, and
motivate and inspire consumers with quality content.
Trained travel agents – the Aussie Specialist Program
Highlights
• L isted 23,261 trained Aussie Specialist Program (ASP)
agents worldwide, an overall decrease of 13 per cent.
ASP numbers declined in Western markets but grew
in Eastern markets, with China recording a 17 per cent
growth in registered agents.
•A
 warded Best Online Training Program at the Globus
Awards in Germany in October 2011.
 chieved outstanding results in a survey of 3,000 global
•A
qualified agents conducted in December 2011. Overall,
93 per cent of respondents advised they were ‘satisfied’
or ‘very satisfied’ with the program.
•A
 chieved top ratings in the survey for the basic Aussie
Specialist training modules; modules from state and
territory tourism organisations; the Aussie Tool Kit, which
provides access to useful sales tools; and the Aussie
Specialist certificate/Aussie Specialist status.
• I ntroduced new program modules in a number of
Western region markets, including Australia’s National
Landscapes, Australia’s Cruise Destinations, and Cairns &
Great Barrier Reef.
•A
 rranged familiarisation visits for international travel
agents to build direct connections with the Australian
tourism industry.
• Attended IMEX America in October 2011. Despite the
less-than-favourable short-term economic outlook in
the USA at the time, there was considerable interest in
long-haul programs, and business events agents and
corporate buyers actively sought information on how to
pitch Australia.
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Enhanced delivery of destination and product content
to the distribution system.
Highlights
• L aunched the ‘Best of Australia’ Program, to showcase
inspirational examples of Australian tourism’s best
products.
• Developed a major new partnership between the
Australian golf and tourism industries. Launched in
November 2011, the Great Golf Courses of Australia
(GGCA) Program is an innovative marketing collaboration
aimed at tapping golf’s tourism potential.
• Sponsored the PGA Northern Trust Open in the USA in
February 2012 as part of the GGCA Program, promoting
‘There’s nothing like golf in Australia’. The PGA Tour
Commissioner was an enthusiastic advocate of Australia
during the event and strong leads were reported by
wholesale partners.
• Developed new ‘Best of’ categories for the program
in 2012/13, including walks and wine-tasting. More
categories that align with the There’s nothing like
Australia campaign will be identified and added during
the year.
 roduced a Working with Tourism Australia guide
•P
for Australia’s tourism industry, which outlines the
opportunities, resources and programs available to help
the industry reach customers in Australia and overseas.
• Developed the third edition of the Planning for Inbound
Success toolkit, which was downloaded more than 3,000
times by members of the Australian tourism industry, at
30 June 2012.
•G
 enerated more than 20,000 views of the There’s nothing
like Australia campaign tools page and over 8,500
downloads of tools and assets, by holding presentations
and other engagements for members of the Australian
tourism industry about Tourism Australia’s key activities
and opportunities.
•D
 eveloped and supported the cruise and youth travel
segments, working closely with Cruise Down Under and
the Backpacker Youth Tourism Advisory Panels.
 oordinated the India Travel Mission in late August 2011,
•C
receiving positive feedback from the 35 seller companies
and 74 buyers who attended. Cricket star Brett Lee made
a surprise appearance, mingling with Indian guests
and showcasing the warm and welcoming nature of
Australians, as part of the advocacy strategy for India 2020.

Freycinet Tasmania

• Held Business Events Australia’s North Asia Showcase
in March 2012. Around 17 Australian business events
operators met with qualified incentive agents and
corporate end-users in Guangzhou and Seoul.
Managed and participated in a range of trade events
in Australia and overseas that promoted Australia as a
destination for leisure and business events travel.
Highlights
• Participated in or coordinated 30 international trade
shows, travel markets and trade missions in markets
around the world during 2011/12, providing Australian
tourism businesses with opportunities to meet travel
agents and wholesalers, and to help build new business
relationships and distribution networks for Australian
tourism products.
• Managed ATE, held in Perth from 15 to 21 June. The
event allowed 700 travel wholesale and retail buyers to
meet 1,700 representatives from 600 Australian tourism
companies and negotiate deals for tour packages that
offer extraordinary experiences to international visitors.
ATE received an overall satisfaction rating of 99 per cent
among buyers, and 96 per cent among sellers.
• Attended the Greater China Travel Mission (GCTM) in
Nanjing in November 2011, where 59 Australian sellers
met with 159 buyers from China, Hong Kong and Taiwan.
The event was also attended by 70 journalists, eight

airline partners, the Department of Immigration and
Citizenship, and the Director General of the Jiangsu
Provincial Tourism Bureau. Post-event evaluation reports
suggest high satisfaction rates from attendees.
• Hosted 72 international business event buyers and
14 international media representatives during the
Dreamtime trade event in November 2011. Buyers visited
seven regional convention bureaux for educational visits
in the Northern Territory, Queensland, South Australia,
Victoria and Western Australia. The buyers then met in
Sydney for a business networking session and gala dinner.
• Hosted business-to-business events for wholesalers,
retailers and business event buyers in Dallas, Houston,
Los Angeles and San Francisco as part of the G’Day
USA program. G’Day USA was attended by Minister for
Resources, Energy and Tourism the Hon Martin Ferguson,
and Tourism Australia Chairman Geoff Dixon.
• Partnered with six convention bureaux in Jakarta,
Kuala Lumpur and Singapore in May 2012 to educate
170 corporate end-users and 70 travel agents on
Australia’s business events capabilities.
• Hosted the Australia stand at business events tradeshow
IMEX Frankfurt in May 2012, with 16 Australian stand
partners. Initial feedback suggested that although there
were fewer buyers than in previous years, the quality of
enquiries was higher.
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Business and trade events and roadshows 2011/12

Event

Held

Country

India Travel Mission (ITM)
China Incentive, Business Travel &
Meetings Exhibition (CIBTM)
Japan Australia Mission (JAM)
International French Travel Market (IFTM)
TTG Incontri
IMEX America
European Meetings & Incentive
Travel Exchange
Corroboree 2011 – The Americas
Korea Travel Mission
Greater China Travel Mission (GCTM)
World Travel Market (WTM)
Pacific Area Incentives and Conferences
Expo (PAICE)
Dreamtime
European Incentive, Business Travel &
Meetings Exhibition (EIBTM)
International Luxury Travel Market (ILTM)
ATEC Meeting Place
G’Day USA
CONFEC Red
Asia Pacific Incentives and Meetings
Expo (AIME)
Internationale Tourismus Borse (ITB)
European New Product Workshop
Indonesia Sales Mission
cruise3sixty
ATEC Symposium
Australia Asia Roadshow
Worldwide Exhibition of Incentive
Travel, Meetings & Events (IMEX)
International Luxury Travel Market Asia
Australian Tourism Exchange

25–28 August 2011
30 August – 1 September 2011

India
China

31 August – 2 September 2011
20–23 September 2011
6–8 October 2011
11–12 October 2011
17–19 October 2011

Japan
France
Italy
USA
UK

29–31 October 2011
3–4 November 2011
6–9 November 2011
7–10 November 2011
9 November 2011

Australia
Korea
China
UK
New Zealand

13–18 November 2011
29 November – 1 December 2011

Australia
Spain

5–8 December 2011
8 December 2011
12–15 January 2012
2–5 February 2012
21–22 February 2012

France
Australia
USA
Spain
Australia

7–11 March 2012
19–21 March 2012
18–21 April 2012
25–30 April 2012
2 May 2012
12–26 May 2012
22–24 May 2012

Germany
UK
Indonesia
USA
Australia
Asia
Germany

4–7 June 2012
15–21 June 2012

China
Australia

Americas Meeting and Events
Exhibition (AIBTM)

19–21 June 2012

USA

Key Performance Indicators – Strengthen the travel distribution system

Performance indicator

2011/12 Target

2011/12 Actual

Key stakeholder satisfaction – Tourism
Australia programs add value

81 per cent rated Tourism Australia’s
functions as ‘excellent’, ‘very good’ or
‘good value’ to their business.

68 per cent rated Tourism Australia’s
functions as ‘excellent’, ‘very good’ or
‘good value’ to their businesses.*

*Notably, ‘excellent’ and ‘very good’ responses grew from 35 per cent to 42 per cent, which is in line with Tourism Australia’s strategy to focus on
key stakeholders.
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Gibraltar Peak, Tidbinbilla, ACT
Photographer: Chris Holly
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Consultancies
and contracts

Human resources
Staffing statistics

Workplace health and safety

Tourism Australia employs 214 staff in Australia and 12
international offices. Australian based staff are engaged
under the Tourism Australia Enterprise Agreement or
common law contracts. International staff are engaged
under employment agreements in accordance with
relevant local labour laws.

Tourism Australia’s employment policies, procedures
and practices complied with the requirements of the
Occupational Health and Safety Act 1991, the Disability
Discrimination Act 1992, the Racial Discrimination Act 1975
and the Sex Discrimination Act 1984.

As at 30 June 2012, 96 of Tourism Australias 214 staff were
employed overseas and 75 per cent were female. In total,
61 per cent of senior management roles and 38 per cent
of executive roles were held by women.

Staff recruitment and retention
In 2011/12, Tourism Australia focused on strengthening
its internal recruitment and selection processes. In
partnership with talent assessment agency SHL, the
organisation recalibrated its selection process to assess
candidates against three equally weighted aspects:
demonstrating behaviours compatible with Tourism
Australia’s values, technical skills and knowledge that
meet the requirements of the role, and previous experience
and achievements.
Tourism Australia also broadened its advertising strategies
by increasing its use of social media to attract candidates.
As a result, staff retention significantly improved, with
98 per cent of new staff staying for at least 12 months
(surpassing the target of 90 per cent) and 88 per cent
staying for at least two years (compared with a target of 80
per cent). Voluntary turnover for 2011/12 was 15 per cent,
marginally higher than in 2010/11 but in line with the
five-year average.

Tourism Australia aims to provide a workplace that
is, as far as reasonably practical, safe and healthy for
employees, contractors and visitors; without risk to the
environment; and compliant with relevant legislation,
standards and codes of practice. Workplace health and
safety in Australia is managed by an occupational health
and safety committee that operates under Health and
Safety Management Arrangements. These arrangements
are designed to identify, analyse, assess, control and
monitor workplace health and safety-related risks involved
in Tourism Australia’s activities. They aim to protect and
develop Tourism Australia’s key assets: its reputation,
people, finances, infrastructure and intellectual property.
Qualified occupational therapists conducted ergonomic
assessments of the workplace on a regular basis
throughout 2011/12.
A team of trained first aid support staff helped to
proactively manage incidents and injuries, and generate
timely and efficient reports.
Tourism Australia has rigorous emergency evacuation
procedures and regularly conducted fire drills and fire
warden training in conjunction with its building managers.
Fire wardens are replaced promptly when vacancies occur.
Workers compensation and industrial disputes
Tourism Australia received no claims for workers
compensation and no time was lost due to injuries
reported in 2011/12.
There were no industrial disputes during the year.

In 2011/12 Tourism Australia had ongoing contracts
with nine consultancies over $10,000, with a total value
of $706,545.
All major contracts included a requirement for contractors
to allow access to their premises by the Australian National
Audit Office.
In accordance with Commonwealth Procurement Rules,
Tourism Australia’s 2011/12 annual procurement plan and
information in regard to all contracts over $400,000 were
published on the AusTender website at tenders.gov.au.

Environmental
performance
Energy
Tourism Australia is a tenant of the Darling Park office
complex, which has achieved unassisted 4.5 stars under
NABERS Energy and 3.5 stars under NABERS Water.
Tourism Australia’s Sydney head office continued to
minimise its environmental impact in 2011/12, by
including duplex printing and copying as a default option
and establishing recycling systems for a variety of office
supplies and consumables.
During the year, printers in the Sydney head office were
replaced with more energy-efficient machines. Video and
web conferencing systems were also enhanced.

Waste
Tourism Australia’s Sydney head office has established
approaches for minimising its environmental impact and
reducing waste. These practices include setting duplex
printing and copying as the default option, and establishing
recycling systems in workspaces and kitchen areas.

Water
Tourism Australia shares the Darling Park office complex
with other tenants, and the tenancy does not provide
separate metered water consumption details. However,
Tourism Australia’s Sydney head office has dual-flush
toilets and flow restrictors on taps.

60 Human Resources

Great Barrier Reef, Queensland
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Corporate governance
Chairman’s statement on fraud control
I am satisfied that Tourism Australia has in place
appropriate fraud prevention, detection, investigation,
reporting and data collection procedures and processes,
in line with its fraud risk assessment and fraud control
plan. I am also satisfied that these arrangements meet the
specific needs of Tourism Australia, and that all reasonable
measures to minimise the incidence of fraud, as well as
investigate and recover the proceeds of fraud, have been
taken. There were no reported incidents of fraud
in 2011/12.

Corporate governance
Tourism Australia is committed to implementing best
practice in matters of corporate governance, and to
ensuring accountability, integrity, transparency and
efficiency are reflected in its day-to-day operations. Tourism
Australia places a strong emphasis on the importance of
these values by ensuring that:

orders and the tabling of its annual report and CAC Act
compliance report. Tourism Australia participated in the
Senate Economics Committee’s Supplementary Budget
Estimates Hearings on 19 October 2011, its Additional
Budget Estimates Hearing on 15 February 2012, and its
Budget Estimates Hearing on 29 May 2012.
Board of Directors
Tourism Australia is governed by a nine-person Board of
Directors. As prescribed in Part 3 of the TA Act, the Board’s
main responsibilities are to ensure the proper and efficient
performance of Tourism Australia’s functions, and to
determine Tourism Australia’s policy in relation to any matter.
Specifically, the Board is accountable for ensuring that
there is an appropriate governance framework in place that
enables Tourism Australia to fulfil its statutory mandate, and
that the organisation is conversant with the general policies,
guidelines and directions of the Australian Government.

Record of Board members and meeting attendance in 2011/12

Board
member

Position

Date of
appointment

Expiry

Geoff Dixon

1/07/2012

30/06/2015

8

8

1/07/2012

30/06/2015

8

8

Sandra McPhee

Chairman/Nonexecutive Director
Deputy Chair/Nonexecutive Director
Non-executive Director

1/07/2012

30/06/2015

8

8

Terri Janke

Non-executive Director

1/07/2008

30/06/2014

7

8

Janet Whiting

Non-executive Director

1/07/2008

30/06/2014

8

8

Brett Godfrey

Non-executive Director

1/07/2010

30/06/2013

6

8

Mark Stone

Non-executive Director

1/07/2010

30/06/2013

7

8

Didier Elzinga

Non-executive Director

1/07/2010

30/06/2013

8

8

Andrew McEvoy

Managing Director/
Senior Executive

25/01/2010

30/06/2014

8

8

Kate Lamont

Meetings
attended

Eligible to
attend

Under the Board Charter, the Board’s responsibilities include:

Board Audit and Finance Committee

• there is a focus on project planning and that the
performance of key projects and contracts is monitored
in line with best practice

• s etting Tourism Australia’s strategic direction, including
approving strategies and targets and establishing policies

Under the CAC Act, Tourism Australia is required to have an Audit and Finance Committee. The Committee provides
independent assurance and assistance to the Board on Tourism Australia’s risk, control and compliance framework,
and financial reporting responsibilities. The Committee is also responsible for advising the Board on Tourism Australia’s
legislative compliance and on internal and external audit programs.

• t here is open communication with the Australian
Government, Minister for Tourism and regulatory bodies

• communicating with the Minister

• s ound risk management policies and procedures are
in place.
The corporate governance section describes Tourism
Australia’s top-level governance arrangements and
provides details on the Board of Directors’ responsibilities,
as well as the main governance practices currently in place.
Enabling legislation and responsible minister
Tourism Australia’s governance arrangements are
prescribed by the Tourism Australia Act 2004 (TA Act) as
well as the Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act
1997 (CAC Act). The TA Act is Tourism Australia’s enabling
legislation and describes the organisation’s specific
objectives, functions and powers. The CAC Act describes
the financial management, accountability and audit
obligations of Commonwealth statutory authorities.
As a portfolio agency under Resources, Energy and
Tourism Minister the Hon Martin Ferguson AM MP,
Tourism Australia must also consider and apply ministerial
directions and statements of expectation that are issued
from time to time.
Parliamentary accountability
Tourism Australia is accountable to the Australian
Parliament through the Senate Estimates process, Senate
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•a
 ccountability for monitoring Tourism Australia’s business

• c omplying with general government policy as directed
by the Minister and according to Tourism Australia’s
statutory obligations as a CAC Act body
•d
 etermining, upholding and promoting the Tourism
Australia Values and the Tourism Australia Code of Conduct
•e
 nsuring that the performance of Tourism Australia’s
functions and the exercise of Tourism Australia’s powers
are consistent with, and designed to give effect to,
the current Corporate Plan and the current Annual
Operational Plan
• s electing and monitoring the performance of the
Managing Director
• reviewing the performance of executive management
•e
 nsuring good corporate governance, effective risk
management, legal compliance, strategic direction and
appropriate structure of Tourism Australia.
In addition to these responsibilities, the Board must
balance competing demands on Tourism Australia, remain
independent from executive management, and manage
the particular interests of all stakeholders and the
wider public.
Tourism Australia holds Directors’ & Officers’ Liability
Insurance to an amount of $100,000,000 with Comcover,
the Australian Government’s general insurance fund.

Record of Board Audit and Finance Committee members and meeting attendance 2011/12

Member

Position

Janet Whiting

Chair

Meetings attended
4

Eligible to attend
4

Sandra McPhee

Member

4

4

Didier Elzinga

Member

4

4

Main governance practices
Tourism Australia subscribes to the definition of public
sector governance set out by the Australian National Audit
Office that: ‘Public sector governance has a very broad
coverage, including how an organisation is managed, its
corporate and other structures, its culture, its policies and
strategies and the way it deals with its various stakeholders.’
Through the corporate planning process and regular
business evaluations, and through the design of the annual
internal audit program, Tourism Australia can assess
the effectiveness of its governance framework and its
vulnerabilities to new and emerging risks.
Tourism Australia also undertakes:
• systematic scrutiny of operations through its participation
in internal and external audits, and scrutiny of internal
controls set out in organisational policies and procedures

• regular review of key governance documents such as the
Board Charter, the Delegations Policy and Instrument, the
Industry Advisory Panel Guidelines and the Code of Conduct
• rolling programs of risk assessment and risk planning
• regular training in corporate governance for staff both in
Australia and overseas
• standard internal and external compliance reporting.
Freedom of Information
Tourism Australia is required to comply with the Freedom of
Information Act 1982 (FOI Act). Tourism Australia received
four Freedom of Information requests during 2011/12. None
of these requests remain outstanding and Tourism Australia
has met its obligations under the FOI Act.
Tourism Australia publishes information on
tourism.australia.com as part of the Information
Publication Scheme.
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2011/12 Awards
International 								
Best Overseas National Tourist Office		

TTG China Travel Awards, Shanghai

Best Country 				

Ultratravel Awards, Daily Telegraph, London

Best Tourism Board				

Globe Travel Awards, London

Best Country to Visit Worldwide			

British Travel Awards, London

Best Asia/Pacific Destination			

Irish Travel Trade Awards

National 								
Australia’s Favourite Ad			

2012 Mumbrella Awards

Digital marketing
Silver – Making Tracks 			

Spikes Asia Awards, Singapore

Best use of music for film craft – Making Tracks

Spikes Asia Awards, Singapore

Best of Show Award – Making Tracks		

Interactive Advertising Bureau Awards

Bronze – Making Tracks			

Australian Direct Marketing Awards

2012 World Class Benchmarking Award		

ataway Exchange

Trade marketing and support
Best Travel Agency Service			

Globus Awards, Tourist Aktuell, Germany

Best Roadshow				

Globus Awards, Tourist Aktuell, Germany

Best Online Training Program			

Globus Awards, Tourist Aktuell, Germany

64 2011/12 Awards

Darwin Harbour, Northern Territory
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Statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income

by the Board Chairman, Audit and Finance Committee Chairperson, Managing Director and
General Manager, Corporate Services

for the year ended 30 June 2012

Notes
In our opinion, the attached financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 are based on properly maintained
financial records and give a true and fair view of the matters required by the Finance Minister’s Orders made under the
Commonwealth Authorities and Companies Act 1997, as amended.
In our opinion, at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Tourism Australia will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Expenses
Employee benefits
Supplier expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Write-down and impairment of assets
Other expenses

3A
3B
3C
3D
3E
3F

Total expenses

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

26,445
119,039
4,290
–
984
3,621

26,347
108,451
4,204
63
–
4,120

154,379

143,185

4,019
2,962
10,249
718
2,524

3,555
2,455
10,749
696
995

20,472

18,450

1,170
–

1,124
18

Less

Geoff Dixon
Board Chairman
15 August 2011

Janet Whiting
Chairperson
Audit and Finance Committee
15 August 2011

Own-source income
Own-source revenue:
Advertising
Interest
Contributions revenue
Rental income
Other revenue

4A
4B
4C
4D
4E

Total own-source revenue
Gains:
Foreign exchange
Other gains
Andrew McEvoy
Managing Director
15 August 2011

Mark Craig
General Manager
Corporate Services

4F
4G

Total gains

1,170

1,142

21,642

19,592

132,737

123,593

132,821

126,920

84

3,327

Other comprehensive income
Changes in asset revaluation surplus

(120)

–

Total other comprehensive income

(120)

–

(36)

3,327

Total own-source income
Net cost of services

15 August 2011

Revenue from government
Surplus attributable to the Australian Government

Total comprehensive income attributable
to the Australian Government

4H

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity

as at 30 June 2012

for the year ended 30 June 2012

Notes

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Retained earnings

Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

5A
5B

Total financial assets
Non-Financial Assets
Land and buildings
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Other non-financial assets

6A
6B
6C
6D

Total non-financial assets
Total assets

26,854
3,812

25,796
6,725

30,666

32,521

777
790
6,154
935

1,067
1,123
5,718
1,060

8,656

8,968

39,322

41,489

Liabilities
Payables
Suppliers
Other payables

7A
7B

Total payables
Provisions
Employee provisions
Other provisions

8A
8B

(6,233)
(2,221)

(5,850)
(2,377)

(8,454)

(8,227)

(3,764)
(830)

(3,400)
(660)

Total provisions

(4,594)

(4,060)

Total liabilities

(13,048)

(12,287)

Net assets

26,274

29,202

Equity
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained surplus

1,543
1,805
22,926

1,543
1,925
25,734

Total equity

26,274

29,202

Asset revaluation
surplus

Contributed
equity/capital

Total equity

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Opening balance
Balance carried forward
from previous year

25,734

22,407

1,925

1,925

1,543

827

29,202

25,159

Adjusted opening balance

25,734

22,407

1,925

1,925

1,543

827

29,202

25,159

Comprehensive income
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year

84
–

3,327
–

–
(120)

–
–

–
–

–
–

84
(120)

3,327
–

Total comprehensive income

84

3,327

(120)

–

–

–

(36)

3,327

of which attributable to the
Australian Government

84

3,327

(120)

–

–

–

(36)

3,327

–
(2,892)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

13,181
(12,465)

–
(2,892)

13,181
(12,465)

Total transactions
with owners

(2,892)

–

–

–

–

716

(2,892)

716

Closing balance as
at 30 June

22,926

25,734

1,805

1,925

1,543

1,543

26,274

29,202

Transactions with owners
Equity injection
Return of foreign
exchange surplus

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statement

Schedule of Commitments

for the year ended 30 June 2012				

as at 30 June 2012				

Notes

2012

2011

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Commitments receivable
Sublease rental income
Net GST recoverable on commitments

1,607
1,780

1,988
2,449

Total commitments receivable

Operating Activities

By Type

Cash received
Sales of goods and rendering of services
Receipts from government
Interest
Net GST received

20,430
132,821
2,955
4,342

13,495
126,920
2,433
4,097

Total cash received

160,548

146,945

Cash used
Employees
Suppliers

(26,081)
(126,600)

(26,337)
(114,688)

Total cash used

(152,681)

(141,025)

7,867

5,920

Net cash from operating activities

9

3,387

4,437

Commitments payable
Other Commitments
Operating leases1
Other commitments2

(6,129)
(23,213)

(10,130)
(31,262)

Total other commitments

(29,342)

(41,392)

Net commitments by type

(25,955)

(36,955)

2,063
1,324

2,588
1,849

By Maturity
Cash used
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles

(369)
(4,718)

(890)
(1,457)

Commitments receivable
Other commitments receivable
One year or less
From one to five years

Total cash used

(5,087)

(2,347)

Total other commitments receivable

Investing Activities

Net cash (used by) investing activities

(5,087)

(2,347)

Financing Activities
Cash received
Contributed equity

–

13,181

Total cash received

–

13,181

Cash used
Distribution to government

(2,892)

(12,465)

Total cash used

(2,892)

(12,465)

Net cash (used by) financing activities

(2,892)

716

(112)

4,289

25,796
1,170

20,383
1,124

26,854

25,796

Net increase in cash held

3,387

4,437

Commitments payable
Operating lease commitments
One year or less
From one to five years
Over five years

(3,633)
(2,496)
–

(5,230)
(4,861)
(39)

Total operating lease commitments

(6,129)

(10,130)

Other commitments
One year or less
From one to five years

(14,566)
(8,647)

(20,548)
(10,714)

Total other commitments

(23,213)

(31,262)

Net commitments by maturity

(25,955)

(36,955)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes:
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate movements on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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5A

Commitments are GST inclusive where relevant.
Commitments receivable comprises sublease rental receivable and GST recoverable.
1. Operating leases comprise leases for office accommodation and equipment leases.
2. Other commitments comprise amounts payable under project agreements in respect of which the recipient is yet to either perform the
services required or meet eligibility conditions.
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Schedule of Commitments
as at 30 June 2012

Nature or lease

General description of leasing arrangement

Lease for office accommodation

The lease payments for some offices are subject to annual increases in
accordance with the terms of the leases. The initial periods of the office
accommodation leases are still current and some of the leases may be
renewed for up to five years at Tourism Australia’s option, with adjustment
of rentals according to the terms of the leases.

Leases in relation to computer
equipment held as at 30 June 2012

The lessors provide all computer equipment and software designated as
necessary in the supply contract for two to three years. Items of computer
equipment supplied under these leases have useful lives of two to three
years from the commencement of the contracts.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes
Note 1: Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
1.1 Objectives of Tourism Australia
Tourism Australia is an Australian Government statutory
authority. Its objective is to promote tourism to and within
Australia. Its revenues are sourced primarily via government
funding and industry revenues. Tourism Australia’s
activities to promote Australia as an international tourist
destination are focused primarily overseas, with the
majority of expenditure incurred via Tourism Australia’s
international offices in Europe, Asia, North America, Japan
and New Zealand.

Notes
1.2 Basis of Preparation of the
Financial Statements
The financial statements and notes are required by clause
1(b) of Schedule 1 to the Commonwealth Authorities and
Companies Act 1997 (CAC Act) and are general purpose
financial statements.
The financial statements and notes have been prepared in
accordance with:
• Finance Minister’s Orders (FMOs) for reporting periods
ending on or after 1 July 2011; and

Tourism Australia is structured to meet one outcome:

• Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) that apply for the reporting period.

Outcome 1: Tourism Australia seeks to increase demand
for Australia as a destination, strengthen the travel
distribution system and contribute to the development of a
sustainable tourism industry through consumer marketing,
trade development and research activities.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis and in accordance with historical cost convention,
except for certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Except
where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of
changing prices on the results or the financial position.

Tourism Australia’s statutory objectives are to:
• i nfluence people to travel to Australia, including
for events
• i nfluence people travelling to Australia to also travel
throughout Australia
• i nfluence Australians to travel throughout Australia,
including for events
•h
 elp foster a sustainable tourism industry in Australia
•h
 elp increase the economic benefits to Australia
from tourism.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars
and values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
unless otherwise specified.

Three Output Groups were identified for this outcome.
Output Group 1 – Industry market development
Contribute to the development of a sustainable tourism
industry through stakeholder engagement and provision of
insights to assist strategic decision making.
Output Group 2 – Strengthen the travel distribution system
Educate trade partners to improve sales capability, facilitate
engagement and business between Australian tourism
products and the distribution network, and motivate and
inspire consumers through quality content.
Output Group 3 – Increase demand for Australia as
a destination
Build Australia’s profile and reputation as an exciting and
desirable leisure and business events destination, driving
demand and subsequently visitation.
The continued existence of Tourism Australia in its present
form and with its present programs is dependent on
government policy and on continuing funding by parliament
for Tourism Australia’s administration and programs.

Unless an alternative treatment is specifically required by
an accounting standard or FMO, assets and liabilities are
recognised in the balance sheet when, and only when,
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
Tourism Australia or a future sacrifice of economic benefits
will be required and the amounts of the assets or liabilities
can be reliably measured. However, assets and liabilities
arising under executor contracts are not recognised unless
required by an accounting standard. Liabilities and assets
that are unrecognised are reported in the Schedule of
Commitments or the Schedule of Contingencies (other
than unquantifiable contingencies, which are reported
at Note 10).
Unless alternative treatment is specifically required by an
accounting standard, income and expenses are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when, and only
when, the flow, consumption or loss of economic benefits
has occurred and can be reliably measured.

1.3 Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates
No accounting assumptions or estimates have been
identified that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next reporting period.

1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards
Adoption of new Australian Accounting
Standard requirements
No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than
the application date as stated in the standard. No new
accounting standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are applicable to the current
reporting period have had a material financial impact on
Tourism Australia.

Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for
nominal consideration are recognised as gains at their
fair value when the asset qualifies for recognition, unless
received from another government agency or authority
as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative
arrangements.

Future Australian Accounting Standard requirements

Revenue from government

No new accounting standards, revised standards,
interpretations or amended standards that were issued
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and are
applicable to future reporting periods are expected to have
a future material financial impact on Tourism Australia.

Funding received or receivable from agencies (appropriated to
the agency as a CAC Act body payment item for payment to
Tourism Australia) is recognised as revenue from government
unless it is in the nature of an equity injection or a loan.

1.5 Revenue
• the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer

Amount received under the Parental Leave Payments
Scheme by Tourism Australia not yet paid to employees
were presented gross as cash and a liability (payable). The
total amount received under this scheme is disclosed as a
footnote to Note 4I: Revenue from Government.

• the seller retains no managerial involvement or effective
control over the goods

1.6 Gains

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:

• the revenue and transaction costs incurred can be
reliably measured
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to Tourism Australia.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of contracts at the
reporting date. The revenue is recognised when:
• the amount of revenue, stage of completion and
transaction costs incurred can be reliably measured
• the probable economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to Tourism Australia.
The stage of completion of contracts at the reporting
date is determined by reference to the proportion that
costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of
the transaction.
Receivables for goods and services, which have 30-day
terms, are recognised at the nominal amounts due less
any impairment allowance account. Collectability of debts
is reviewed at balance date. Allowances are made when
collectability of the debt is no longer probable.
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest
method as set out in AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.
Resources received free of charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue
when and only when a fair value can be reliably determined

76 Notes to the Financial Statements

and the services would have been purchased if they had
not been donated. Use of those resources is recognised as
an expense. Resources received free of charge are recorded
as either revenue or gains depending on their nature.

Parental Leave Payment Scheme

Resources received free of charge
Resources received free of charge are recognised as
gains when, and only when, a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would have been purchased
if they had not been donated. Use of those resources is
recognised as an expense.
Resources received free of charge are recorded as either
revenue or gains depending on their nature.
Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for nominal
consideration are recognised as gains at their fair value when
the asset qualifies for recognition, unless received from
another government agency or authority as a consequence of
a restructuring of administrative arrangements.
Sale of assets
Gains from disposal of assets are recognised when control
of the asset has passed to the buyer.

1.7 Transactions with the Government as Owner
Equity injection
Amounts that are designated as equity injections for a year
are recognised directly in contributed equity in that year.
Restructuring of administrative arrangements
Net assets received from or relinquished to another
government entity under a restructuring of administrative
arrangements are adjusted at their book value directly
against contributed equity.
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Other distributions to owners
The FMOs require that distributions to owners be debited to
contributed equity unless it is in the nature of a dividend.

1.8 Employee Benefits
Liabilities for short-term employee benefits (as defined in
AASB 119 Employee Benefits) and termination benefits due
within twelve months of the reporting period are measured
at their nominal amounts.
The nominal amount is calculated with regard to the rates
expected to be paid on settlement of the liability.
Other long-term employee benefits are measured as net total
of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period minus the fair value at the end of
the reporting period of plan assets (if any) out of which the
obligations are to be settled directly.
Leave
The liability for employee benefits includes provision for
annual leave, long service leave, time off in lieu, bonus leave
and purchased leave. No provision has been made for sick
leave as all sick leave is non-vesting and the average sick leave
taken in future years by employees of Tourism Australia is
estimated to be less than the annual entitlement for sick leave.
The leave liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees’
remuneration, at the estimated salary rates that will be
applied at the time the leave is taken, including Tourism
Australia’s employer superannuation contribution rates to
the extent that the leave is likely to be taken during service
rather than paid out on termination.
The liability for long service leave has been determined by
reference to the present value of the estimated future cash
flows to be made in respect of all employees as at
30 June 2012. The estimate of the present value of the
liability takes into account attrition rates and pay increases
through promotion and inflation.
Separation and redundancy
Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit
payments. Tourism Australia recognises a provision for
termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for
the terminations and has informed those employees that it
will carry out the terminations.
Tourism Australia incurred or provided $408,000
(2011: $431,000) in separation or redundancy costs during
the current financial year.
Superannuation
In Australia, staff of Tourism Australia are members of the
Australian Government Employee Superannuation Trust
(AGEST), Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme (CSS),
the Public Sector Superannuation Scheme (PSS), the PSS
accumulation plan (PSSap) or a plan of their own choice.
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The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the
Australian Government. The AGEST and PSSap are
accumulation schemes.
The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial
statements of the Australian Government and is settled by
the Australian Government in due course. This liability is
reported by the Department of Finance and Deregulation as
an administered item.
Tourism Australia makes employer contributions to the
defined benefit schemes at rates determined by an actuary
to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the government
of the superannuation entitlements of Tourism Australia’s
employees. Tourism Australia accounts for these contributions
as if they were contributions to defined contribution plans.
The liability for superannuation recognised as at 30 June
2012 represents outstanding contributions for the final
fortnight of the year.
The contribution rate for Tourism Australia as a Group 2
Authority was 9 per cent for AGEST (2010/11: 9 per cent),
18.4 per cent for CSS (2010/11: 18.4 per cent) 11.2 per cent
for PSS (2010/11: 13.5 per cent), 15.4 per cent for PSSap
(2010/11: 15.4 per cent) and other choice of fund between
9 per cent to 15.4 per cent of salaries in 2011/12 (unchanged
from 2010/11).
In addition, Tourism Australia remitted Employer Productivity
Superannuation Contributions to ComSuper for employees
in defined benefit schemes only. The contribution rate was
variable and banded according to earnings between
2 per cent and 3 per cent of salaries in 2010/11.
In Hong Kong, in accordance with local regulations Tourism
Australia provided superannuation for its locally engaged
staff with HSBC Life (International) Ltd. The contribution
rate was 11.5 per cent of gross salaries in 2011/12 for
staff that joined before 1 December 2000 (11.5 per cent
in 2010/11). Tourism Australia matched employees’
contributions up to a maximum of 5 per cent of gross
salary in 2011/12. (The contribution rate was 5 per cent of
gross salary in 2010/11 for those staff who joined after
1 December 2000 under the new mandatory provident
fund regulations).
In India, Tourism Australia provided superannuation for its
locally engaged staff with Provident Fund. The contribution
rate was 12 per cent of base pay and the associated
administration fees varied between 1.13 per cent and
1.39 per cent since 2009.
In Malaysia, Tourism Australia provided superannuation for
its locally engaged staff with Provident Fund at a rate of
12 per cent.
In Singapore, Tourism Australia provided superannuation
for its locally engaged staff with the Central Provident Fund
at a regulated rate of 15.5 per cent (capped at a monthly
ceiling of SGD$4,500) until August 2011. From September
2011 the contribution rate was 16 per cent (capped at a
monthly ceiling of SGD5,000).

In Korea, Tourism Australia provided superannuation
for its locally engaged staff with funds run by National
Pension. The contribution rate was 4.5 per cent of salaries
in 2011/12(4.5 per cent in 2010/11).

contributes 4 per cent toward the scheme – whereby staff can
contribute the equivalent amount of 2 per cent, 4 per cent or
8 per cent depending on the employee’s preference.

In Taiwan, Tourism Australia provided superannuation for its
locally engaged staff in accordance with local regulations.
The contribution rate in 2011/12 was 2 per cent of salaries to
Labour Standards Law Fund and 6 per cent of salaries to the
employee’s individual pension fund account governed by the
Labour Pension Act (unchanged from 2010/11).

1.9 Leases

In China, Tourism Australia provided superannuation for its
locally engaged staff with the local official agency FESCO.
The monthly contribution for resident staff is between 44
per cent and 62 per cent of index salary (set annually by the
local government) per staff member in 2011/12 and the
contribution ranged from around CNY2,100 to CNY6,600
(unchanged from 2010/11).
In Japan, Tourism Australia provided superannuation for
its locally engaged staff with Japan’s National Pension
Scheme, where the contribution rate was 8.206 per cent
of salaries with an annual limit of JPY610,526 in 2011/12
(8.029 per cent in 2010/11).
In the USA Tourism Australia provided an optional
employee retirement benefit for its locally engaged staff
in Los Angeles with Mutual of America. Tourism Australia
matched employees’ contributions up to a maximum of
3 per cent of gross salary in 2011/12 with an annual limit
of US $11,500 for employees less than 50 years of age. For
employees who are 50 years of age or older, the limit is
US $14,000. These limits apply to employee contributions
only on a calendar year basis.
In Canada Tourism Australia provided an optional employee
retirement benefit for its locally engaged staff. Tourism
Australia matched employees’ contributions up to a
maximum of 3 per cent of gross salary in 2011/12
(3 per cent in 2010/11). Funds are deposited in designated
member funds chosen by the employees.
In the United Kingdom, in accordance with locally engaged
terms and conditions of employment, Tourism Australia
provided a group personal pension scheme for its locally
engaged staff in London with Standard Life Assurance Co.
Contributions to the scheme were fixed at 10 per cent in
2011/12 (10 per cent in 2010/11).
In Germany Tourism Australia contributed an inclusive
social amount to the statutory insurance government fund
for its locally engaged staff. Tourism Australia matched
staff contributions on a 1:1 basis. The contribution rate is
not separately nominated.
In New Zealand Tourism Australia provides the opportunity for
all staff to join the New Zealand Government superannuation
scheme – Kiwisaver. The scheme is not mandatory for
locally engaged staff; however, Tourism Australia currently

A distinction is made between finance leases and operating
leases. Finance leases effectively transfer from the lessor to
the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of leased assets. An operating lease is a lease
that is not a finance lease. In operating leases, the lessor
effectively retains substantially all such risks and benefits.
Tourism Australia has not entered into any finance leases.
Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line
basis which is representative of the pattern of benefits
derived from the leased assets.

1.10 Borrowing Costs
All borrowing costs from the unwinding of make good
provisions are expensed as incurred.

1.11 Cash
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand
deposits in bank accounts with an original maturity of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash is recognised at its nominal amount.

1.12 Financial Assets
Tourism Australia classifies its financial assets as ‘loans and
receivables’ and ‘held-to-maturity investments’.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.
Financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon
‘trade date’.
Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity dates that Tourism Australia
has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity investments. Held-tomaturity investments are recorded at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment, with
revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.
Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest rate.
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Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
Financial assets held at amortised cost: if there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments held
at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount is reduced by way of an allowance account. The loss
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Financial assets held at cost: if there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate for
similar assets.

1.13 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other
financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognised and
derecognised upon ‘trade date’.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent fair value
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an effective
yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Supplier and other payables
Supplier and other payables are recognised at cost.
Liabilities are recognised to the extent that the goods or
services have been received (and irrespective of having
been invoiced).

1.14 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised
in the balance sheet but are reported in the relevant schedules
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and notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence
of a liability or asset, or represent an existing liability or asset
in respect of which settlement is not probable or the amount
cannot be reliably measured. Contingent assets are reported
when settlement is probable but not virtually certain, and
contingent liabilities are recognised when the possibility of
settlement is greater than remote.

1.15 Financial Guarantee Contracts
Tourism Australia had no financial guarantee contracts
during the financial year.

1.16 Acquisition of Assets
Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated
below. The cost of acquisition includes the fair value of
assets transferred in exchange and liabilities undertaken.
Financial assets are initially measured at their fair value plus
transaction costs where appropriate.
Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are
initially recognised as assets and income at their fair value
at the date of acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence
of restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the
latter case, assets are initially recognised as contributions by
owners at the amounts at which they were recognised in the
transferor’s accounts immediately prior to the restructuring.

1.17 Property, Plant and Equipment
Asset recognition threshold
Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised
initially at cost in the balance sheet, except for purchases
costing less than $5,000, which are expensed in the year of
acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of
similar items which are significant in total).
The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. This is particularly relevant
to ‘make good’ provisions in property leases taken up by
Tourism Australia where there exists an obligation to
restore the property to its original condition. These costs
are included in the value of Tourism Australia’s leasehold
improvements with a corresponding provision for the
‘make good’ recognised..
Revaluations
Valuations undertaken in each year are as at 30 June.
Fair values for each class of asset are determined as
shown below.
Asset class
Leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment

Fair value measured at
Depreciated replacement cost
Depreciated replacement cost

Following initial recognition at cost, property, plant and
equipment was carried at fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Valuations were conducted with sufficient frequency
to ensure that the carrying amounts of assets did not differ
materially from the assets’ fair values as at the reporting
date. The regularity of independent valuations depended
upon the volatility of movements in market values for the
relevant assets.
Revaluation adjustments were made on a class basis. Any
revaluation increment was credited to equity under the
heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent
that it reversed a previous revaluation decrement of the
same asset class that was previously recognised in the
surplus/deficit. Revaluation decrements for a class of assets
were recognised directly in the surplus/deficit except to the
extent that they reversed a previous revaluation increment
for that class.
Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date
was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the asset was restated to the revalued amount.

replaced if Tourism Australia were deprived of the asset, its
value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.
Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no further economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

1.18 Intangibles
Tourism Australia’s intangibles comprise internally developed
software for internal use, campaign production and
trademarks. These assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its
anticipated useful life. The useful lives of Tourism Australia’s
software are two to five years. All software assets are
assessed for indications of impairment as at 30 June.
Campaign production is amortised on a straight-line basis
over three years. The campaign production was assessed
for indications of impairment as at 30 June.
The useful life of trademarks is estimated at ten years.

1.19 Taxation

Depreciation
Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are
written-off to their estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives to Tourism Australia using, in all
cases, the straight-line method of depreciation. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the lesser of the estimated useful life of the improvements
or the unexpired period of the lease.

Tourism Australia is exempt from all forms of taxation in
Australia except for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods
and Services Tax (GST).

Depreciation rates (useful lives), residual values and
methods are reviewed at each reporting date and necessary
adjustments are recognised in the current, or current and
future reporting periods, as appropriate.

• for receivables and payables.

Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable
asset are based on the following useful lives.
2012
Leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment

2011

Lease term

Lease term

3 to 10 years

3 to 10 years

Impairment

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
GST except:
• where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from
the Australian Taxation Office
Tourism Australia is exempt from all foreign taxation laws
except for any consumption taxes.

Note 2: Events After the
Reporting Period
There were no significant events after the reporting period
that had an impact on the financial statements.

All assets are assessed for impairment at 30 June. Where
indications of impairment exist, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment
made if the asset’s recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use is
the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset. Where the future economic benefit
of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability
to generate future cash flows, and the asset would be
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Note 3: Expenses
Expenses

Note 3: Expenses (continued)
2012

2011

$’000

$’000

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Asset write-down and impairments from:
Impairment on intangible assets – Campaign Production
Write-down of non-financial assets

(850)
(134)

–

Total write-down and impairments of assets

(984)

–

Expenses
Note 3E: Write-down and impairment of assets

Note 3A: Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Superannuation:
Defined benefit plans
Defined contribution plans
Leave and other entitlements
Separation and redundancies
Other employee benefits expense
Total employee benefits

(21,364)

(20,972)

(443)
(1,647)
(1,876)
(408)
(707)

(624)
(1,632)
(1,990)
(431)
(698)

(26,445)

(26,347)

(69,039)
(22,324)
(6,310)
(6,000)
(10,289)

(59,166)
(22,718)
(5,630)
(6,241)
(9,868)

Note 3F: Other expenses
Other operating expenses

(3,621)

(4,120)

Total other expenses

(3,621)

(4,120)

Note 3B: Suppliers
Goods and services from external parties
Advertising
Promotion and publicity
Films, publications and distribution
Information systems and telecommunications
Research, service fees and travel
Total goods and services
Other supplier expenses
Operating lease rentals:
Minimum lease payments
Workers compensation premiums
Total other supplier expenses
Total supplier expenses

Note 4: Income

(113,962)

(5,062)
(15)

(103,623)

(4,816)
(12)

(5,077)

(4,828)

(119,039)

(108,451)

Note 3C: Depreciation and amortisation

Own-Source Revenue

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Note 4A: Advertising
Advertising revenue

4,019

3,555

Total advertising revenue

4,019

3,555

Note 4B: Interest
Deposits

2,962

2,455

Total interest

2,962

2,455

Note 4C: Contributions revenue
Industry contributions*

10,249

10,749

Total contributions revenue

10,249

10,749

Depreciation
Infrastructure, plant and equipment

(807)

(837)

* Industry contributions reflect the actual value of industry support for Tourism Australia’s activities from direct revenue. In addition to direct

Total depreciation

(807)

(837)

revenues from the industry, joint marketing programs were undertaken. Through these programs the industry supplements funds provided

Amortisation
Intangibles:
Computer software
Campaign production
Trademarks
Make good

(1,581)
(1,841)
(10)
(51)

(1,590)
(1,619)
(10)
(148)

Total amortisation

(3,483)

(3,367)

Total depreciation and amortisation

(4,290)

(4,204)

funds do not form part of the reported level of industry contributions for Tourism Australia, but are in addition to it.

Note 3D: Finance costs
Unwinding of discount for make good

–

(63)

Total finance costs

–

(63)
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by Tourism Australia for product development, visiting journalists and tactical marketing programs. Due to the nature of the programs, these

Note 4D: Rental income
Operating lease:
Office sub-tenancies

718

696

Total rental income

718

696

Note 4E: Other revenue
Other revenue
Payments from other government bodies

1,024
1,500

995
–

Total other revenue

2,524

995
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Note 4: Income (continued)
Gains

Note 5: Financial Assets (continued)
2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Note 4F: Foreign exchange
Non-speculative

1,170

1,124

Total foreign exchange gains

1,170

1,124

Note 4G: Other gains
Reversal of restoration provision
Reversal of impairment losses
Total other gains

–
–
–

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

1,461
991
1,328

1,155
619
933

54
–

47
4,000

54

4,047

3,834

6,754

Note 5B: Trade and other receivables
Goods and services
GST receivable from the Australian Taxation Office
Deposit and advances
Other:
Interest
Other receivables

18
–

Total other receivables

18

Total trade and other receivables (gross)

Revenue from government

Less impairment allowance account:
Goods and services

(22)

(29)

Note 4H: Revenue from government*

Total trade and other receivables (net)

3,812

6,725

Receivables are aged as follows
Not overdue

3,549

6,506

259
25
1
–

135
26
82
5

3,834

6,754

Overdue by:
30 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
More than 90 days

(21)
(1)
–

–
(24)
(5)

Total impairment allowance account

(22)

(29)

Goods and services
Opening balance
Amounts reversed

(29)
7

(42)
13

Closing balance

(22)

(29)

Department of Resources, Energy and Tourism:
CAC Act body payment

132,821

126,920

Total revenue from government

132,821

126,920

* Tourism Australia received $34,000 (2011: $Nil) under the Paid Parental Leave Scheme.

Note 5: Financial Assets

2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Note 5A: Cash and cash equivalents
Australian Dollars
Canadian Dollars
Chinese Yuan
Euro
Great Britain Pounds
Hong Kong Dollars
Japanese Yen
Korean Won
Malaysia Ringgit
New Zealand Dollars
Singapore Dollars
Thailand Baht
Indian Rupee
Unites States Dollars
Taiwan Dollars

23,781
78
860
318
433
174
19
99
59
260
414
64
48
233
8

24,431
83
167
52
192
324
17
26
128
55
88
74
74
27
52

Cash at bank or on deposit

26,848

25,790

6

6

26,854

25,796

Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

Overdue by:
Less than 30 days
30 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
More than 90 days
Total receivables (gross)
The impairment allowance account is aged as follows

Reconciliation of the impairment allowance account

Receivables are expected to be recovered in
No more than 12 months

3,812

6,725

Total trade and other receivables (net)

3,812

6,725

Note 5C: Investments
Shares in other company – unlisted (at cost)
Less: Provision for diminution in value

400
(400)

400
(400)

–

–

–

–

–

–

Total investments
Investments are expected to be recovered in
More than 12 months
Total investments

Tourism Australia holds 11.9 per cent interest in Australian Tourism Data Warehouse Pty Limited (ATDW), which is carried at cost less provision
for diminution in value. ATDW’s principal activity is the development of a database for Australian Tourism Products.
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Note 6: Non-Financial Assets
Note 6A: Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
In progress
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Total leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements make good
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation

Note 6: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
2012

2011

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

10,987
(9,472)

10,419
(7,890)

1,515

2,529

–
12,458
(6,990)
(850)

264
8,042
(5,149)

4,618

3,157

108
(87)

108
(76)

Note 6C: Intangibles
75
7,065
(6,483)

–
9,941
(8,994)

658

947

692
(573)

642
(522)

Total leasehold improvements make good

119

120

Total land and buildings

777

1,067

Software at cost
In use
Accumulated amortisation
Total software
Campaign production at cost
In progress
In use
Accumulated amortisation
Impairment losses
Total campaign production

Some minor items of equipment/furniture and fittings will be sold or disposed as part of the Sydney office move in the next 12 months.

Trademarks
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

The amounts involved will be immaterial.
No indicators of impairment were found for land and builidings.

Note 6B: Infrastructure, plant and equipment
Computer and office equipment
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Total computer and office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Fair value
Accumulated depreciation

1,530
(867)

1,983
(1,086)

663

897

407
(280)

714
(488)

Total furniture and fittings

127

226

Total infrastructure, plant and equipment

790

1,123

No indicators of impairment were found for land and buildings.
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Total trademarks

21

32

Total intangibles

6,154

5,718

No indicators of impairment were found for intangible assets.

Note 6D: Other non-financial assets
Prepayments

935

1,060

Total other non-financial assets

935

1,060

Total other non-financial assets are expected to be recovered in:
No more than 12 months

935

1,060

Total other non-financial assets

935

1,060
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Note 6: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
Note 6E: Reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of
property, plant and equipment (2011/12)
As at 1 July 2011
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Net book value 1 July 2011
Additions
By purchase
Effect of exchange rate movements
Disposals
Depreciation/amortisation expense
Write back of depreciation
Net book value 30 June 2012
Net book value as at 30 June 2012, represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Net book value 30 June 2012

Note 6E (cont’d): Reconciliation of the opening and closing
balances of property, plant and equipment (2010/11)
As at 1 July 2010
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Net book value 1 July 2010

Note 6: Non-Financial Assets (continued)
Buildings
$’000

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Total
$’000

10,583
(9,516)

2,697
(1,574)

13,280
(11,090)

1,067

1,123

2,190

143
29
(3,375)
(420)
3,333

188
9
(1,032)
(438)
940

331
38
(4,407)
(858)
4,273

777

790

1,567

7,833
(7,056)

1,937
(1,147)

9,770
(8,203)

777

790

1,567

Buildings
$’000

Plant and
equipment
$’000

Total
$’000

11,187
(9,625)

1,982
(1,259)

13,169
(10,884)

1,562

723

2,285

Note 6F: Reconciliation of the opening and
closing balances of intangibles (2011/12)
As at 1 July 2011
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairment
Net book value 1 July 2011
Additions
By purchase or internally developed
Disposals
Amortisation
Impairment recognised in other
comprehensive income
Write-back of amortisation
Net book value 30 June 2012
Net book value as of 30 June 2012 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairment
Net book value 30 June 2012

Additions
By purchase
Effect of foreign exchange movements
Disposals
Depreciation/amortisation expense
Write-back of depreciation

159
(43)
(8)
(611)
8

783
(8)
(28)
(374)
27

942
(51)
(36)
(985)
35

Note 6F (cont'd): Reconciliation of the opening
and closing balances of intangibles (2010/11)
As at 1 July 2010
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and
impairment

Net book value 30 June 2011

1,067

1,123

2,190

Net book value 1 July 2010

10,583
(9,516)

2,697
(1,574)

13,280
(11,090)

1,067

1,123

2,190

Net book value as of 30 June 2011 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment
Net book value 30 June 2011

Additions:
By purchase or internally developed
Disposals
Amortisation
Impairment recognised in other
comprehensive income
Write-back of amortisation
Net book value 30 June 2011
Net book value as of 30 June 2011 represented by:
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation
and impairment
Net book value 30 June 2011
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Computer
software
internally
developed
$’000

Campaign
production
$’000

Trademarks
$’000

Total
$’000

10,419

8,306

108

18,833

(7,890)

(5,149)

(76)

(13,115)

2,529

3,157

32

5,718

567
–
(1,581)

4,152
–
(1,841)

–
–
(11)

4,719
–
(3,433)

(850)

(850)

–

–

–

–

1,515

4,618

21

6,154

10,987

12,458

108

23,553

(9,472)

(7,840)

(87)

(17,399)

1,515

4,618

21

6,154

Computer
software
internally
developed
$’000

Campaign
production
$’000

Trademarks
$’000

Total
$’000

10,527

7,587

108

18,222

(7,146)

(3,530)

(66)

(10,742)

3,381

4,057

42

7,480

738
(846)
(1,590)

719
–
(1,619)

–
–
(10)

1,457
(846)
(3,219)

846

–

–

846

2,529

3,157

32

5,718

10,419

8,306

108

18,833

(7,890)

(5,149)

(76)

(13,115)

2,529

3,157

32

5,718
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Note 7: Payables

Note 8: Provisions
2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Note 7A: Suppliers
Trade creditors and accruals

(6,233)

(5,850)

Total supplier payables

(6,233)

(5,850)

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Note 8A: Employee provisions
Leave

(3,764)

(3,400)

Total employee provisions

(3,764)

(3,400)

(2,106)
(1,658)

(2,011)
(1,389)

(3,764)

(3,400)

Supplier payables expected to be settled within 12 months
External parties

(6,233)

(5,850)

Employee provisions are expected to be settled in
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months

Total supplier payables

(6,233)

(5,850)

Total employee provisions

Settlement is usually made within 30 days.

Note 7B: Other payables
Salaries and wages
Superannuation
Unearned income
Other liabilities

(580)
(42)
(1,233)
(366)

(563)
(34)
(1,095)
(685)

Total other payables

(2,221)

(2,377)

Total other payables are expected to be settled in
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months

(2,159)
(62)

(2,269)
(108)

Total other payables

(2,221)

(2,377)

Note 8B: Other provisions
Provision for restoration obligations

(830)

(660)

Total other provisions

(830)

(660)

Other provisions are expected to be settled in
No more than 12 months
More than 12 months

(446)
(384)

(36)
(624)

Total other provisions

(830)

(660)

Carrying amount as at 1 July
Additional provisions made
Amounts used for restoration of premises
Amounts adjusted for revaluation
Amounts reversed for expired leases
Unwinding of discount or change in discount rate

(660)
–
–
(170)
–
–

(605)
–
–
–
8
(63)

Closing balance as at 30 June

(830)

(660)

Provision for restoration

Tourism Australia currently has 13 agreements for the leasing of premises which have provisions requiring Tourism Australia to restore
the premises to their original condition at the conclusion of the lease. Tourism Australia has made a provision to reflect the present value of
these obligations.
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Note 9: Cash Flow Reconciliation

Note 11: Directors’ Remuneration
2012
$’000

2011
$’000

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per
Balance Sheet to Cash Flow Statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per
Cash Flow Statement
Balance sheet
Difference
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash from operating activities
Net cost of services
Add revenue from government
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation/amortisation
Unwinding of discount for make good provision
Reversal of restoration provision
Impairment of other non-financial assets held for sale
Other gains – make good provision reversal for expired leases
Other gains – recognition of assets held for sale
Impairment losses
Write-down of non-financial asset
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses

26,854
26,854

25,796
25,796

–

–

(132,737)
132,821

(123,593)
126,920

4,290

4,204
–
–
–

(120)

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by non-executive directors of
Tourism Australia

5
2
1

5
2
1

8

8

2012
$

2011
$

470,714

451,082

Note 12: Related Party Disclosures			
No director has entered into any transaction with Tourism Australia during the year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: $Nil).

–
–
–
(1,124)

Changes in assets/liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in employee provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions
Increase/(decrease) in supplier payables
Increase/(decrease) in other payables

2,913
125
364
170
383
(156)

(2,522)
(77)
10
55
709
1,338

Net cash from operating activities

7,867

5,920

Tourism Australia has no contingent assets or liabilities, quantifiable or unquantifiable.

Total number of non-executive directors

2011
No.

Remuneration of executive directors is included in Note 13: Senior Executive Remuneration.

–
850
134
(1,170)

Note 10: Contingent Liabilities and Assets

The number of non-executive directors of Tourism Australia included in these figures
is shown below in the relevant remuneration bands:
$30,000 to $59,999
$60,000 to $89,999
$90,000 to $119,999

2012
No.

Note 13: Senior Executive Remuneration
2012
$

2011
$

Short-term employee benefits
Salary
Annual leave accrued

7,268,118
538,482

7,015,160
525,613

Total short-term employee benefits

7,806,600

7,540,773

Note 13A: Senior executive remuneration expense for the reporting period

Post-employment benefits
Superannuation

714,057

751,143

Total post-employment benefits

714,057

751,143

Other long-term benefits
Long service leave

130,497

130,497

Total other long-term benefits

130,497

130,497

Termination benefits
Total employment benefits

233,260

51,781

8,884,414

8,461,387

Note 13A is prepared on an accrual basis.			
Note 13A excludes acting arrangements and part-year service where total remuneration expensed for a senior executive was
less than $150,000.			
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Note 13: Senior Executive Remuneration (continued)

Note 13: Senior Executive Remuneration (continued)

Note 13B: Average annual reportable remuneration paid to substantive senior executives during the reporting period

Note 13C: Other highly paid staff

2012
Average annual reportable
remuneration¹
Total remuneration (including
part-time arrangements)
Less than $150,000
$150,000 to $179,999
$180,000 to $209,999
$210,000 to $239,999
$240,000 to $269,999
$270,000 to $299,999
$300,000 to $329,999
$390,000 to $419,999
$420,000 to $459,999
Total

Senior
executives
No.

Reportable
salary²
$

2012
Contributed
superannuation³
$

Reportable
allowances4
$

Bonus
paid5
$

Total
$

2
4
7
3
3
6
1
3
2

132,811
156,153
180,793
198,164
206,683
257,573
288,496
363,826
403,694

11,610
9,682
15,280
21,662
28,463
26,657
25,032
39,777
37,655

–
–
2,555
–
13,004
7,192
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

144,422
165,835
198,628
219,827
248,150
291,422
313,529
403,603
441,349

31

2,188,194

215,819

22,751

–

2,426,764

2011
Average annual reportable
remuneration¹
Total remuneration (including
part-time arrangements)
Less than $150,000
$150,000 to $179,999
$180,000 to $209,999
$210,000 to $239,999
$240,000 to $269,999
$270,000 to $299,999
$300,000 to $329,999
$330,000 to $359,999
$420,000 to $459,999
Total

Senior
executives
No.

Reportable
salary²
$

Contributed
superannuation³
$

Reportable
allowances4
$

Bonus
paid5
$

Total
$

3
4
4
6
3
3
4
3
1

127,505
152,634
176,728
200,537
211,972
257,044
317,136
342,026
382,538

8,378
8,337
24,012
23,794
32,694
25,275
36,889
33,937
48,772

–
3,825
69
–
12,843
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

135,883
164,795
200,809
224,331
257,509
282,319
354,026
375,964
431,310

31

2,168,120

242,090

16,736

–

2,426,946

Contributed
superannuation³
$

Total remuneration (including
part-time arrangements)
$150,000 to $179,999
$180,000 to $209,999
$210,000 to $239,999

3
1
1

157,024
165,879
201,220

10,982
14,929
19,657

Total

5

524,124

45,568

–

–

569,692

Staff
No.

Reportable
salary²
$

Contributed
superannuation³
$

Reportable
allowances4
$

Bonus
paid5
$

Total
$

1

162,493

20,880

183,373

1

188,104

25,580

213,684

2

350,597

46,460

Average annual reportable
remuneration¹

Bonus
paid5
$

Total
$

168,007
180,808
220,877

2011
Average annual reportable
remuneration¹
Total remuneration (including
part-time arrangements)
$180,000 to $209,999
$210,000 to $239,999
Total

–

–

397,057

1. This table reports staff:

1. This table reports substantive senior executives who received remuneration during the reporting period. Each row is an averaged figure based
on headcount for individuals in the band.			
2. ‘Reportable salary’ includes the following:
a) gross payments (less any bonuses paid, which are separated out and disclosed in the ‘bonus paid’ column)
b) reportable fringe benefits (at the net amount prior to ‘grossing up’ to account for tax benefits)
c) exempt foreign employment income.								
			
3. The ‘contributed superannuation’ amount is the average actual superannuation contributions paid to senior executives in that reportable
remuneration band during the reporting period, including any salary sacrificed amounts, as per the individuals’ payslips.

a) who were employed by the entity during the reporting period
b) whose reportable remuneration was $150,000 or more for the financial period
c) who were not required to be disclosed in Tables A, B or director disclosures.
Each row is an averaged figure based on headcount for individuals in the band.
2. ‘Reportable salary’ includes the following:
a) gross payments (less any bonuses paid, which are separated out and disclosed in the ‘bonus paid’ column)
b) reportable fringe benefits (at the net amount prior to ‘grossing up’ to account for tax benefits)
c) exempt foreign employment income.							
3. The ‘contributed superannuation’ amount is the average actual superannuation contributions paid to staff in that reportable remuneration
band during the reporting period.
4. ‘Reportable allowances’ are the average actual allowances paid as per the ‘total allowances’ line on individuals’ payment summaries.
5. ‘Bonus paid’ represents average actual bonuses paid during the reporting period in that reportable remuneration band. The ‘bonus paid’
within a particular band may vary between financial years due to various factors such as individuals commencing with or leaving the entity
during the financial year. 		
Various salary sacrifice arrangements were available to other highly paid staff including superannuation, motor vehicle and expense payment
fringe benefits. Salary sacrifice benefits are reported in the ‘reportable salary’ column, excluding salary sacrificed superannuation, which is
reported in the ‘contributed superannuation’ column.							
				

Note 14: Remuneration of Auditors

4. ‘Reportable allowances’ are the average actual allowances paid as per the ‘total allowances’ line on individuals’ payment summaries.
5. ‘Bonus paid’ represents average actual bonuses paid during the reporting period in that reportable remuneration band. The ‘bonus paid’
within a particular band may vary between financial years due to various factors such as individuals commencing with or leaving the entity
during the financial year. 								

Fair value of the services provided for auditing the financial statements for the
reporting period

Various salary sacrifice arrangements were available to senior executives including superannuation, motor vehicle and expense payment fringe
benefits. Salary sacrifice benefits are reported in the ‘reportable salary’ column, excluding salary sacrificed superannuation, which is reported in
the ‘contributed superannuation’ column.

No other services were provided by the Auditor-General during the reporting period.
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Reportable
allowances4
$

Staff
No.

Reportable
salary²
$

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

(113)

(118)

(113)

(118)
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Note 15: Financial Instruments

Note 15: Financial Instruments (continued)
2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Loans and receivables:
Cash at bank and on deposit
Trade and other receivables

26,854
2,821

25,796
6,106

Total

29,675

31,902

Carrying amount of financial assets

29,675

31,902

Note 15A: Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets

Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Trade and other payables

(8,454)

(8,227)

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

(8,454)

(8,227)

Note 15E: Credit risk exposures
Tourism Australia is exposed to minimal credit risk as the majority of loans and receivables are cash at bank and on
deposit, and trade receivables for goods and services. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the risk that arises from
potential default of a debtor. This amount is equal to the total amount of trade receivables (2012: $3,834,000 and 2011:
$6,754,000). Tourism Australia has assessed the risk of the default on payment and has allocated $29,000 in 2012 (2011:
$29,000) to an impairment allowance account. Tourism Australia managed its credit risk by undertaking background and
credit checks prior to allowing a debtor relationship.
Tourism Australia has established policies and procedures in regard to collection of debts.
Tourism Australia holds no collateral to mitigate credit risk.
Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired

Note 15B: Net income and expense from financial assets
Held-to-maturity assets:
Interest revenue (refer to Note 4C)

2,962

2,455

Cash at bank
Receivables for goods
and services

Net gain from held-to-maturity assets

2,962

2,455

Total

Net gain from financial assets

2,962

2,455

The total interest income from financial assets not at fair value through profit and loss in the year ended 30 June 2012
was $2,962,000 (2011: $2,455,000).

Not past due nor
impaired
2012
$’000
26,854
2,558

Not past due nor
impaired
2011
$’000
25,796
5,887

Past due or impaired
2012
$’000
–
284

Past due or impaired
2011
$’000
–
219

29,412

31,683

284

219

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2012

Note 15C: Net income and expense from financial liabilities
Financial liabilities – at amortised cost
Exchange gains (refer to Note 4G)

1,170

1,124

Receivables for goods
and services

Net gain financial liabilities – at amortised cost

1,170

1,124

Total

Net gain from financial liabilities

1,170

1,124

0 to 30
days
$’000
259

31 to 60
days
$’000
25

61 to 90
days
$’000
–

90+
days
$’000
–

Total
$’000
284

259

25

–

–

284

Ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired for 2011

Note 15D: Fair values of financial
assets and liabilities
Financial assets
Cash at bank
Deposits at call
Receivables for goods and services

Notes
5A
5A
5B

Total financial assets
Financial liabilities (recognised)
Trade creditors
Other payables
Total financial liabilities
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7A
7B

Carrying
amount
2012
$’000

Fair value
2012
$’000

Carrying
amount
2011
$’000

Fair value
2011
$’000

4,180
22,674
2,821

4,180
22,674
2,821

5,667
20,129
6,106

5,667
20,129
3,184

29,675

29,675

31,902

28,980

(6,233)
(2,221)

(6,233)
(2,221)

(5,850)
(2,377)

(5,850)
(2,377)

(8,454)

(8,454)

(8,227)

(8,227)

Receivables for goods
and services
Total

0 to 30
days
$’000
135

31 to 60
days
$’000
26

61 to 90
days
$’000
58

90+
days
$’000
–

Total
$’000
219

135

26

58

–

219

2011–2012 ANNUAL REPORT 97

Notes

Notes

Note 15: Financial Instruments (continued)

Note 16: Restructuring

Note 15F: Liquidity risk
Tourism Australia's financial liabilities are supplier payables. The exposure to liquidity risk is based on the notion that
Tourism Australia will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. This is highly
unlikely due to government funding and internal policies and procedures put in place to ensure there are appropriate
resources to meet its financial obligations.

There was no restructuring in 2011/12.

Note 17: Reporting of Outcomes

The following tables illustrate the maturities for financial liabilities
Outcome 1

Note 17A: Net cost of outcome delivery
On demand
2012
$’000
–
–

Within 1 year
2012
$’000
6,233
2,159

1 to 5 years
2012
$’000
–
62

>5 years
2012
$’000
–
–

Total
2012
$’000
6,233
2,221

–

8,392

62

–

8,454

Within 1 year
2011
$’000

1 to 5 years
2011
$’000

>5 years
2011
$’000

Total
2011
$’000

Trade creditors

On demand
2011
$’000
–

5,850

–

–

5,850

Other payables

–

2,269

108

–

2,377

Total

–

8,119

108

–

8,227

Trade creditors
Other payables
Total

Tourism Australia receives funding from the Australian Government. Tourism Australia manages its budgeted funds to ensure it has adequate

2012

2011

$’000

$’000

Expenses
Departmental

(154,379)

(143,185)

Total expenses

(154,379)

(143,185)

4,019
10,249
2,962
1,170
3,242

3,555
10,749
2,455
1,142
1,691

Other external revenues
Advertising
Industry contribution
Interest
Gains
Other revenues
Total other external revenues

21,642

19,592

Net cost of outcome delivery

(132,737)

(123,593)

funds to meet payments as they fall due. In addition, Tourism Australia has policies in place to ensure timely payments are made when due

Refer to Note 1.1 for a description of Outcome 1.

and has no past experience of default.

Net costs shown include intra-government costs that are eliminated in calculating the actual budget outcome.

Note 15G: Market risk
Tourism Australia holds basic financial instruments that do not expose it to major market risks. Tourism Australia accounts
for its financial instruments (cash and cash equivalents) in accordance with AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and reports these instruments under AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
Foreign exchange
Tourism Australia maintains foreign bank accounts that facilitate local transactions and at balance date reported an
Australian dollar equivalent cash balance of $3 million (2011: $1.4 million). Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency are converted to Australian dollar equivalents at the exchange rate prevailing on balance date. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses on foreign currency are taken to profit and loss.
Tourism Australia expends a significant amount of revenue from government in foreign currencies and uses budget
parameter rates to measure its performance against budgets. In 2012 the movement of the Australian dollar against
foreign currencies resulted in an estimated gain of $1.7 million (2011: gain of $2.9 million). This movement also
contributed to an increase in overall cash balance.	
The principal exchange rates affecting the foreign exchange gain are the US Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar, Great British
Pound, Euro and Chinese Yuan.					
Interest rate
Tourism Australia maintains operating and investment bank accounts to manage cash. The operating bank accounts are
non–interest bearing and investment accounts are designated in liquid and short-term interest-bearing deposits. All
cash deposits are held in operating accounts at balance date (2012: $25.8 million; 2011: $25.8 million).
The average interest rates during the year for the interest-bearing accounts were between 3.5 per cent and 6 percent.
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5,925

3,369

19,390

13,897
–
4,844
310
–
339

(16,049)

(449)
–

(2,767)
(12,834)

$’000

2012

22,865

11,658
327
10,500
225
–
155

(13,152)

(386)
–

–

(2,368)
(10,398)

$’000

2011

Output Group 2

127,978

113,263
4,019
5,405
2,526
–
2,765

130,808)

(3,658)
–

(22,551)
(104,598)

$’000

2012

119,136

112,325
3,146
–
2,173
–
1,492

(126,658)

(3,721)
–

–

(23,383)
(99,554)

$’000

2011

Output Group 3

1,170

–
–
–
–
1,170
–

(984)

–
–

(984)

–
–

$’000

1,142

–
–
–
–
1,142
–

(63)

–
(63)

–

–
–

$’000

2011

Non-Specific
2012

154,463

132,821
4,019
10,249
2,962
1,170
3,242

(154,379)

(4,290)
–

(984)

(26,445)
(122,660)

$’000

2011
$’000

146,512

126,920
3,555
10,749
2,455
1,142
1,691

(143,185)

(4,204)
(63)

with the Annual Operational Plan for 2011/12. Outcome 1 is described in Note 1.1.

–

(26,347)
(112,571)

Total
2012

The attribution of expenses and revenue is based on percentage of direct investment in the respective outputs. The investment reflects Tourism Australia’s objectives which are consistent

Total

2,937
82
249
57
–
44

(3,312)

(6,538)
5,661
–
–
126
–
138

(97)
–

–

(596)
(2,619)

(183)
–

(1,127)
(5,228)

$’000

$’000

Income
Revenue from government
Advertising
Industry contribution
Interest
Gains
Other non-taxation revenues

Total

Expenses
Employees
Suppliers and other expenses
Write-down and imparment
of assets
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

2011

2012

Output Group 1

Note 17B: Major classes of departmental revenues and expenses by output groups and outputs

Notes

Note 17: Reporting of Outcomes (continued)

Wolgan Valley, Blue Mountains, New South Wales
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River Cafè, Adelaide, South Australia
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Australian Accounting Standards Board
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Approved Destination Status scheme

AGEST

Australian Government Employee Superannuation Trust

ASP

Aussie Specialist Program

ATDC
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BEA
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PAICE

Pacific Area Incentives and Conference Expo
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PSS
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PSS accumulation plan

RET

Department of Resources, Energy and Tourism
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National Tourism Accreditation Framework

TRA

Tourism Research Australia

UNWTO

United Nations Tourism Organization
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media; websites; entries under
individual platform names

South America 10
see also entries under individual
country names
South Australia Tourist Commission 47
Spain 14, 58
Speedo 32, 48
spend see expenditure
sponsorship 25, 29, 30, 46, 53, 56
staff 7, 11, 21, 38, 43, 44, 60, 63
stakeholder engagement 34, 51,
54–55
state and territory tourism
organisations 8, 10–11, 15–17, 22,
24, 31–32, 35, 37–39, 41–42, 48,
51–52, 55–56
Statement of Expectations 13, 34
Story Teller groups 41, 53
Strategic Annual Plan 50
sustainability 13
Swain Tours 37
T
tablet 28
Taiwan 29, 51, 57
TBEX North America travel writers 25
television advertising 24–25
television programs 24–25, 29, 31,
46–48
Thailand 11, 51
There’s nothing like Australia
campaign 2, 7, 10, 16, 19, 22–26, 28,
31, 32, 35, 41, 46–49, 51, 53–54, 56
phase two 6, 10, 17, 23–25, 35, 47–49
Tourism Access Working Group 16, 52
Tourism Australia Act 2004 2, 12, 13, 62
tourisminvestment.com.au 35
Tourism Northern Territory 47
Tourism Quality Council of Australia
16, 36, 52
Tourism Queensland 32, 47
Tourism Research Advisory Board 13,
52
Tourism Research Australia (TRA) 11,
22, 42
Tourism Tasmania 29
Tourism Tropical North Queensland 47
Tourism 2020 4, 7, 9–10, 13–18,
21–22, 26, 34–39, 41–42, 51–53
Tourism 2020 Strategy Groups 51, 52
Tourism Victoria 29, 32
Tourism Visa Advisory group 16
Tourism Western Australia 39, 46–47
T-QUAL accreditation program 7, 16,
34, 36, 52, 53
transport 15, 16, 24, 41, 48, 52, 53
see also aviation
trade events see industry events
training 34, 37, 41, 42, 52, 53, 54, 56,
60, 63, 64

TripAdvisor 30, 36, 47, 48, 53
TTG Incontri 58, 64
Tudou (tudou.com) 11, 24, 47–49
2020 Tourism Industry Potential 13,
15, 42
Twitter 11, 26, 36, 48
U
United Kingdom (UK) 4, 8, 10, 14,
16, 22–24, 26, 30–32, 38–39, 47–49,
51, 53, 55, 58, 64, 79
United Nations World Tourism
Organization (UNWTO) 9, 14
United States of America (USA) 4, 7–8,
10, 14, 16, 22–25, 30–31, 37–39,
47–49, 53, 56–58, 76, 79
V
value of tourism, economic 2, 8, 10, 12,
22, 27, 42, 80
video, use of 10, 23–25, 29, 35, 47–49, 54
video.australia.com 49
Vietnam 22
Virgin Australia 10, 31, 37, 47
visual assets 49
Visiting Opinion Leaders program
29, 48
visitors to Australia, inbound 2–3, 8,
14, 16–18, 22–23, 30–31, 33, 48, 52,
56–57
W
websites 10–11, 24, 29, 25, 26, 28,
32, 35–37, 41, 47–49, 53, 54, 63
Weibo 11
Welcome Chinese Visitors Strategic
Tourism Investment Grant 52
Western Europe 8
see also entries for individual
countries
Wildiaries Nature Series Filming
Project 54
word-of-mouth advocacy 29, 32, 48
workers compensation 60, 82
working holiday visas 10
Workplace Health and Safety 60
Working with Tourism Australia 56
World Route Development Forum 52
World Travel Market (WTM) 58
Worldwide Exhibition of Incentive
Travel, meetings and Events (IMEX)
56–58
Y
Yang, Rainie 29, 47
YouKu 24, 49
youth market 10, 28, 47, 56
YouTube 48, 49
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Contacting Tourism Australia
AUSTRALIA
Level 18, Darling Park Tower 2
201 Sussex Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Telephone: +61 2 9360 1111
Facsimile: +61 2 9331 6469
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
CANADA
Suite 272, 1920 Yonge Street
Toronto M4S 3E2
Telephone: +1 416 408 0549 or
+1 416 408 0560
Facsimile: +1 416 408 1013
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
CHINA
Unit 1501, 15/Citigroup Tower
33 Hua Yuan Shi Qiao Road
Lujiazui PuDong
Shanghai 200120
Telephone: +86 21 6887 8129
Facsimile: +86 21 6887 8133
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
GERMANY
Neue Mainzer Strasse 22
D 60311 Frankfurt/Main
Telephone: +49 69 274 00622
Facsimile: +49 69 2740 0640
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
HONG KONG
Suite 6706, 67th Floor Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai
Telephone: +852 2531 3800
Facsimile: +852 2802 8211
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
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INDIA
Office 52, 5th Floor
Nariman Bhavan
Nariman Point
Mumbai 400021
Telephone: +91 22 6628 0200
Facsimile: +91 22 6743 9765
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
JAPAN
12F Marunouchi Trust
Tower North
1-8-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo 100-0005
Telephone: +81 3 5218 2560
Facsimile: +81 3 5218 2577
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
KOREA
20th Floor, Youngpoong Building
33 Seorin-dong
Chongro-ku
Seoul 110-752
Telephone: +82 2 399 6500
Facsimile: +82 2 399 6507
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
MALAYSIA
Suite 12-1, Faber Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail 50250
Kuala Lumpur
Telephone: +60 3 2611 1148
Facsimile: +60 3 2070 4302
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com

NEW ZEALAND
Level 3, 125 The Strand
Parnell 1001
Auckland
Telephone: +64 9 915 2826
Facsimile: +64 9 915 2881
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
SINGAPORE
101 Thomson Road
United Square #08-03
Singapore 307591
Telephone: +65 6255 4555
Facsimile: +65 6253 8431
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
UNITED KINGDOM
Australia Centre
Australia House
6th Floor, Melbourne Place/Strand
London WC2B 4LG
Telephone: +44 20 7438 4601
Facsimile: +44 20 7240 6690
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com
UNITED STATES
6100 Center Drive
Suite 1150
Los Angeles California 90045
Telephone: +1 310 695 3200
Facsimile: +1 310 695 3201
Email: ask.us@tourism.australia.com

